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DEPC?S1.'3ITOEI OS I R A  E. WZLLIAMS, r 7 - D .  5 : .  , 

a witness o f  lawful age ,  taken on behalf of t h e  

def&ndant, w h e r e i n  Kathleen Maboz~iy is t h e  plaintiff, 2nd 

Wil l i am E. C h e p l a ,  l J * D . S * ,  i s  t h e  d e t e n d a n t .  pendinn i n  

t h e  Court o f  Common F l e a s .  Cuyahcsaa C:otmty, O h i ~ ,  

p u r s u a n t  to stipulation, before LISA A .  fREERf3N B N o t a r y  

Public in and for t he  State of W i s c o n s i n ,  a t  6lsZl South  

Highlands Avenue ,  Madison, Wisconsin, on t h e  7th day Gf 

I lnvember ,  1988, comrnencincr a t  I 1 : F j O  o ' c l o c I c  a .m.  

A P 1' E A R A rz c E s 

PRANK P, . De SkNTI s . 
RAUFMAM & CUHBERLAPJD, A t t o r n e y s  at Law,  
1404 E a s t  N i n t h  Street, C l e v e l a n d ,  Ohio, 
84114-2702, appear inq  on behalf of the 
plaintiff 

EUGENE B. MEADOR, 
K I T C H E N  NESSMER & DEEELY, Attorneys at.  L a w ,  
1100 I l l u m i n a t i n g  Building, 5 5  E3uubll.c Square, 
Cleveland, Ohio, 44113, appearinq on b e h a l f  
of t h e  defendant 

R X f l t *  

a 1 - C u r r i c u % u m  v i t a e  . . . . . . . . . . . . . -' 

9 . -  Er. Wil l i ams '  report . . . . . . a e - e . . 37 

( O r i g i n a l  t r a n s c r i p t  is filed with A t t o r n e y  t-leador f 

* * k c \ *  
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Y e s  (I 

I f  you don't understand one o f  my questions. p l e a s e  

tell me and 1'11 be g l a d  to r e p h r n G . , e  i t  €sr yc?u s o  

t h a t  you do understand it, However, if you do answer 

o n 8  of my q u e s t i o n s ,  X ' m  y o i n a  t o  h o l d  you to the 

answer and  asgum@ t h a t  you've understood i t ,  i s  t h a t  

fair? 

That. ' 8 co r r ec t .  

For t h e  r e c o r d ,  would you tell us your name, p lease .  

Ira E. Wil l iams ,  D . D . S ,  

And your  residence address, please? 

6102 S o u t h  H i g h l a n d s  Avenue,  Madison, W i s c o n e i n ,  

5 3 7 0 5 .  

And your  business address, please?  

It's the same a t  this t ime.  T p r a c t i c e  o u t  of o t h e r  

offices now. f am semiratired and c o n t i n u i n g  my 

private practice in other offices. 

Okay, And you ate a dentist who specializes i n  o r a l  

s u r g e r y ,  is t h a t  correct? 

C o r r e c t .  

Dr. Wil l i ams ,  handing you w h a t ' s  been marked 3 s  

E x h i b i t  1 and da t ed  today, i t  appears to be a resume 

which is dated on t h e  t o p  J a n u a r y  2 9 t h .  1988. Is 
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I t h a t  re6ume a n  accurate recitation of y o u r  education 

and the n s ~ o c i a t i ~ n s  YOU befsnq to? 

A Y e s .  Not B cornpfcte ,  b u t  what f consider the more 

p e r t i n e n t  e lements  ol: m y  curricuium vitae, and this 

was prepared by m y s e l f .  

fl Okay. Insofar as it's n o t  complete, is there 

anything t h a t  you would care to add which ycu believe 

would  be pertinent to the o p i n i o n s  that you're going 

to be giving in connection with this litigation? 

A fl just presented a surgical r o u n d - t a b l e  to our clinic 

that was presented twice at tho -- we refer to a s  

WAQMS, R-A-O-M-S, the American Association of Oral 

tand Maxillofacial Surgeons a n n u a l  meeting at Boston, 

and these  presentations were September 32 and 

October 2 of 1988. 

X 3150 do n o t  lisc t w o  articles that I have 

published in the literature years  ago during my 

internship and shortly aEter i n  the beginning of my 

residency and numerous continuing education sessions 

that X have maintained through the yea r s .  

I h a v e  been very active in g o i n g  to t h e  state 

and national oral surgery meetings and anesthesia 

meetings for continuing education in my s p e c i a l t y .  

Q Was the round-tabla presentation which  YOU gave in 

Boston, what was the topic of t h a t .  or was it -- let 



! 

11 

1 

1: 

1: 

11 

f L  

I t  

17 

1 E  

1 6  

2c 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

c 

b 

me rephrase t h a t .  

t ' i d  your presentation o r  t h e  t w o  a r t i c l e s  

k h a t  you mentioned or any of the o t h e r  continuinu 

education c ~ u r s e s  that y o u ' v e  been c o n t i n u i n g  eo do 

Q V B ~  t h e  years, d i d  t h e y  h a v e  a n y t h i n g  to do with t h e  

topics t h a t  are going t o  be  d i s c u s s e d  i n  c o n n e c t i o n  

With this l i t , i g E % t i G n ?  

And by t h a t  I: mean l i k e  n r u l t i p l e  e x t r a c t i o n s  

and the k i n d  cf procedure t h a t  Or. Cheple performed, 

in addition, i n f e c t i o n s  and the t r e a t m e n t  € o r  

infections and that s o r t  of thingf. 

k t4y presentation in Boston consisted -- t h a  topic was 

otogenous bone grafts and C o r v i n  implants t~ both 

j a w  -- to either jaw and would indicate an area of 

advanced surgery  czE t h e  jaws for t h e  new era of 

implants t h a t  we're i n .  

f have a l s o  attended throuahout t h e  y e a r s  

several p r e s e n t a t i o n s  specific on i n f e c t i o n s  and 

dealing w i r h  maxillofacial inf ectiuns t h r o u g h o u t  t h e  

y e a r s ,  so y e s ,  much of my cont inuirLp education h a s  

been d i r e c t l y  related t o  t h e  f a c t o r s  involved in this 

case. 

Q When was the last t i m e  that you attended a seminar cr 

some k i n d  of an educational cou r se  concernina 

infections? 

MAGNUM R E  PORT X NG 
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A. It's difficult to be p r e c i s e  in chat l've gone to $ 3  

msny like when 1 -1- s i n c e  1954.6 X have attended ovar 

7 5  p e r c e n t  of a l l  the annual meetings of our national 

s o c i e t y  and have attended usually t h r e e  round-tabla3 

each year  1 would go that would b e  given f o r  specific 

topics. 

Cha of t h e  topics, w i t h o u t  B d o u b t .  was on 

infections and  t h e  t r s B t r n e n t  of infections of t h e  

oral --- of t h e  maxillofacial rocl ion.  1 can't t o l l  

you e x a c t l y  which a n n u a l  meeting was the l a s t  one I 

attended p r i o r  to t h i s .  

Q Where t h a t  t o p i c  was discussed -- 
A Also, 1 was on a s k i  t r i p  about four years aqo where 

the i n f e c t i o u s  disease department at t h e  University 

Medical School in S t ,  Louis, St. Louis U n i v e r s i t y ,  

happened to have postgraduate education going on, and 

T attended t h a t .  I t  was primarily for p h y s i c i a n s ,  

h u t  S attended that on infectious disease? and brought 

back much of t h e  h a n d o u t s  and material t h e y  gave and 

gave them to one of the phygicians at t h e  clinic t h a t  

I was most closely related to h e r e  i n  t h e  city, and I 

dlcaI i ' t  know i f  that was, s a y ,  a b o u t  €our gears ago. 

I: forget ,  whether it was Aspan or Vail or 

where, but I did attend their meetings and did go to 

that place to ski. Just coincidentally t h e y  had t h i s  

MAG PIUM K E E) OR% I IiC 
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meeting, and I thought i t  wa6 on t h i n g s  t h a t  

i n t e r e s t e d  m0. So I can’t remember the e x a c t  date, 

and t h i s  was multiple l e c t u r e s  t ,h roughout  t h e  w e e k ,  a 

daily -- 
Hould i t  be fair- to s a y ,  thoughl based upon your  

recollection that t h e  last update t h a t  you‘ve had  in 

the infection a r e s ,  so to s p e a k ,  would have been 

within t h e  last f o u r  years?  

Oh, easily, yes. 

A t  t h a t  ski trig that you‘re talking abaut? 

Yes 0 

The t w o  a r t i c l e s  t h a t  you publ i shod ,  w h a t  were t h e y  

sn? 

Oh, one was on -- in fact, one ha s  been cited 

xiurneraus times t h r o u g h o u t  the literature because  it 

was one of the e a r l y  cllscamples of showing carcinoma 

beginning in the lining of B d e n t a l  cyst, and i n  my 

case of the upper  j a w ,  which at that time most 

experts  did n o t  believe t h a t  carcinoma would begin in 

the epithelial lining of d e n t a l  cysts. 

So in 1962 when 1 was i n  i n t e r n s h i p  a t  tha VA 

in Memphis, I romoved t h e  c y s t  in the upper jaw of a 

patient, and the pathologist read the slides and 

s a i d ,  “In thia case I S Q O  early carcinoma.” 

3L presented this, and one of p r o b a b l y  the 

riizc N ubi  IC E PORT I PJG 
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most noteworthy oral p a t h o l o g i s t s  at that t i m e ,  who 

was a General  Bronier (ph.) who was head of the 

dental service for t h e  Army a t  Walter Reed, a t  a 

me?ating l a t e r  disputed t h a t  f i n d i n g .  

S i n c e  t h e n  they have found t h a t  carc inomas  

can and do begin i n  the lining of c y s t s ,  and my 

a r t i c l e  has been cited, o h ,  1 would  say numBrous 

times throughout t h e  literature throughout tho  world 

as Q R ~  of t h e  early C B B ~ G  showing t h i s ,  and t h e  o t h e r  

was j u s t  a case report an Q. f i b r o u s  dysplasia of t h e  

maxilla, j u s t  k i n d  of an interesting l i t t l e  case .  

Didn't add that much to the litoraturs, 

Have you relied on any particulsr articles or 

reference books in arriving at your opinions in t h i s  

case? 

I n  this case, the bulk of my opinions have came from 

my c o n t i n u o u s  use of our jaurnale. Primarily the 

Journal of Oral Surgery put out by the Association of 

Oral and Maxillofacial Surgeons and t o  some ex ten t .  

the '88 journal and what t h e y  c a l l  the 000, t h e  O r a l  

P a t h o l o g y ,  O r a l  Medicine Journal, but primarily it 

has been my own p r a c t i c e  and experience and primarily 

t h e  JournEtL of Oral Surgery. 

Are thera any a r t i c l e s  that corn8 t o  mind or any 

a r t i c l e s  t h a t  yau reviewed in c o n n e c t i o n  w i t h  
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p r e p a r i n g  your opinion in this case? 

Yes. 1 t h i n k  it's n i n e  a r t i c l e s  and two fe t t e r s  to 

t h e  e d i t o r s  c o n c e r n i n q  t h o s e  a r t i c l e s ,  and 1 h a d  sent 

copies of t h e s e  j u s t  rocantly to A t t o r n e y  -- 
MR. DaISANTIS:  D e S a n t i s .  

-- D e S a n t l . ~ ,  And he  can p r o v i d e  you copiaa of t h e s e  

or 1 can  p r o v i d e  YQU copies of r h e s e .  

Okay, If' I c a n  do t h a t ,  I will g e t  copies then of 

t h o s e  a r t i c l e s  i n s t e a d  of wasting time and going over 

each o f  t h o ~ e  titles and authors now. 

All right. Now, one thing, the copies I gave 

Attorney DeSantis I had not m a r k e d  a n ,  and since 

sending those and €or further p r e p a r a t i o n ,  I did go 

through these and make a small number of m a r k s  that 

would no t  be shown on his copies. 

I cou ld  get my wife t Q  Copy Or 1 can  Copy 

those pages r i g h t  quick later on to make sure you 

show the markings that I put an these. 

Very good. 

And they're not a grea t  d e a l  of markings ,  but I did 

them so Z would h e l p  both of you to focus in on what 

I b e l i e v e  the aeries of articles can lead you to. 

Ulray,  Is there any one a r t i c l e  that you r e l i e d  Gn 

more than the o t h e r s ,  or are t h e y  a l l  e q u a l l y  

persuasive LO you? 

MAGNUM R E P O R T I N G  
B 
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fly feeling i n  reaviewing then4 was that they  mor^ or 

less p r o v i d e  B mosaic, and I felt that without t r y i n g  

to overwhelm you with a r t i c l e s  that this number would 

more o r  less be l i k e  pieces  o f  a puzzle that would 

f i t  togethsr, and a t  the end 1 t h i n k  w o u l d  give you a 

v a r y  c l e a r  and concise basis f o r  at lenst. t h e  

daterminatfons that I have mads. 

P r i o r  to y o u r  retirement, which 1 believe you s a i d  

was in August of t h i a  year? 

August 31 T. closed my office for the active p r a c t i c e ,  

X have since -- well, last Thursday E surgically 
iRipl6WitE?d four implants in B gakient, and  330 a g a i n ,  

I'm still continuing to practice but not on a daily 

basis, ncir da 1 have an office of my own, So that 

was August 3 2  af this y e a r ,  

What is your  present arrangement to do your work t h a t  

you s t i l l  have an interest in doing? 

R i g h t  now T ' m  consulting with patients from any 

Eource, not j u s t  from the men whose afEice I might 

use to do implants, and that's for rnyzelf and that 

patient to know what to later reconstruct on those 

implants when they're ready f a r  reconstruction. 

A5 a surgeon, 1 can  only put  implants in. I 

cannot build on t h e n .  So any  implants X m i g h t  

i n s e r t ,  r .here would be an understanding we would find 
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a d e n t i s t  qualified to build on them l a t e r .  

So right now the one office I use has  three 

d l e n t i s t s  I n  it and S O  t h e y  will -- I have  consulted 

w i t h  one or two patient8 of t h e i r s  t h a t  i n  the f u t u r e  

1'11 probably put implants in. In f a c t ,  1 was 

p u t t i n g  implants in the very last day my o f f i c e  waa 

open,  Augusr, 3 1 .  

1 had a pat ient -,  that I w a s  inserting implants 

in because I knew I had a dentist that could build on 

them later and t h a t  if they had any problem, 1: could 

see t hen  in t h e i r  office and so forth. So T 

practiced r i g h t  up until the end doing t h i n g s  that 

cuufd be dane  in the future, Irnowing t h a t  1 would 

continue to s t a y  and p r a c t i c e  to some degree. 

How are YOU limiting yourself. in terms of your 

practice now3 What kind of work are you willing t o  

do and  how much af your time are you willing to 

devote to your consultation work? 

FJs311, quite frankly, I had j u s t  s t a r t e d  doing t h e  

bone g r a f t s  far implants abaut the l a s t  y e a r  and a 

half, and 1 find this fascinating and I've got one 

patlent who we were supposcd to do the surgery for 

t h e  bone graft In J u l y  of this y e a r ,  this past July, 

and her husband's company chnnged insurance at the 

end of Jur le ,  and t h e y  change to Blue Cross ,  Blue 

MAGNUM REPORTf NG 
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S h i e l d ,  which  denied t h e  surgery.  

We're appealing that, and  we both anticipate 

that: if Blue Cross ,  Blue Shield will ultimately 

approvc t h a t ,  I'm a t i l l  going to do the bone yratt in 

t h e  hospital for h e r  and then later put implants i n  

i t .  

So 1. envision n e x t  y e a r  to consistently be 

p u t t i n g  implants in paople, that I t h i n k  this w i l l  

come to a f a i r l y  consistent practice and n o t  just 

something t h a t  I hardly ever do at a l l ,  but  Z haven't 

got i n t o  it f a r  enough to really know. 1 was so busy  

c l o s i n g  my office and getting ready for the t,allrs in 

Boston, I wasn't pursuing it much since t h e  end of 

August, 

But X envision next year  to continue to still 

put implants i n ,  and one o €  t h e  reasons is that I 

feel particularly the younger dentists need to qet 

implants in t h e i r  practice. Mast of them don't have 

t h e  a b i l i t y  t o  put them in, and  I'm hoping to 

ericour8qe young dentists to start using implants, end  

P will ba g l a d  t o  insert th@m as often, 3s Erequsntly 

as I C J A .  SO I do anticipate continual practice. 

Q With the implants? 

A With  the i m p l a n t s  in o t h e r  offices. 

Q Jus t  so that I understand what you mean by i m p l a n t s ,  
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could you tell us? 

A The "new" implant, they call t h e m  endosseous, 

e - n - d - a - s - 8 - ~ - o - u - s I  and t h e y ' r e  actually root fo rm.  

Y c ) ~ i ' r c  literally drilling slowly on bone and 

i n s e r r i n g  a titanium cylinder, most of them a r e  

titanium cylinder, i n t o  t h e  bone and sew i t  up and 

let t h e  bone recover and  then uncover  them a few 

months l a t e r  and if t h e  bone has  responded well and 

it's totally angulosecl in t h e  bone, you can then 

attach a denture, a partial, a bridga, B crown to it, 

And BO whsreras t h e y  haven't been doing them 

for t o o  many yEars in this country, in Sweden they 

have probably 20 years experience now. The 8uccess 

rate is so high t h a t  they just had a consortium 

meeting at N I N  in J u m  of thia year, 1 believe. 1 

have a copy of it, and t h e y  believe they're getting 

close to the point of telling practicing dentists 

t h a t  if zhey don't include t h o s e  new implants as one 

of the possible treatment p l a n s  of people who can 

benefit from t h e m ,  that that in itself might be 

construed 8 s  less than satisfactory care, so they're 

coming an so fast. 

I refer to them as being very similar to the 

t o t a l  h i p  r e p l a c e m e n t .  You can p u t  them in anyone, 

regardless of age, if they have enough bone and they 
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aren't diabetic and have some debilitating d i s e a s e  

and later on attach something to them,  and they'xa 

just EantaE;t ic .  

X think the dental literature, Including t h e  

000, i.n the  n e x t  5 ,  10 y e a r s  i s  going to do B ~ O T I T I O U B  

e x p a n s i o n  of their utilization and t h e  number of 

dentists putting them in, but each  dentist will have  

t o  l e a r n  how t o  use them, 

The last few y e ~ r s  J intend to p r a c t i c e ,  1 

hope to help in every way 1 can young dentiats g e t  

them started. f tell practicing dentists in this 

area, the longer  yau expect to practice, the more 

i m p o r t a n t  i t  is far you to get implants into your 

practice because they're gofng to became such a 

meaningful part of the future of dentists, and P trill 

put: t hese  in any member of my family. 1 would have 

one put  in myself, 

P r i o r  to your semiret i rement  now, you were in p r i v a t e  

practice since, I b e l i e v e  -- 
July ' 6 6 .  

'66. Why don't you, i f  you could, just outline in 

general while you were i n  private practice the type 

of patients that you n o r m a l l y  saw and t h e  type of 

t rea tment  that you would g i v e  those patients e 

All right. In 1966 we were classified as o r a l  
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surgeons, and a high percantage: of those 

practitioners wauld have been more accurately termed 

e x o d o n t i s t s ,  primarily limited Ca remavi.ng t e e t h ,  

impacted t e e t h ,  fixing fractures in the office. 

Fractures and things might be in t he  hospital, not a 

great: d e a l  of majar surgery, 

Beg inn ing  in the mid and l a t e  ' 6 0 3 ,  o r a l  

s u r g e r y  started to expand rapidly i n t o  much more 

sophisticated major surgery of the maxillofacial 

region, meaning the upper and lower jaw @rid the 

ability and relationship of t hese  jaws, and function 

is considered the m a x i l l o f a c i a l  -- the lower par t  of 

t h e  orbit and beneath the skull and a l l  of the bone 

and t e e t h  and so forth would make up the oral  and 

maxillofacial region, and 1 think it was late '70s 

that our American Association of Oral Surgeons 

changed its name to American Society of Oral and 

Maxillofacial. Surgeons. 

What I'm getting at is when L came o u t  of 

t r a i n i n g ,  Z primarily was trained to do office clral 

surgery, a little -- name trauma and removing t e e t h  

and so f o r t h .  1 made B very specific endaavor ta 

stay up with my specialty, and so I expanded my scope 

throughout the years to include orthognathic surgery, 

which is the surgical correction of deformities with 
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thrr? surgical repositioning of one or both j a w s ,  of 

d o i n g  operations for the elimination of major 

pathology of t h e  jwws, including bone grafts, and 

then tha addition of implant xuz-gery. 

s u r g e r y  1 specifically d i d  not incorporate into my 

practice, and that w a ~  surgery of t h e  TM joint. I 

treatad patients -- I treated and diagnosed TMJ 

problems and t r e a t e d  patients conservatively but 

elected specifically not to add surgery of the TM 

j o i n t  t o  my scope b e c a u s e ,  quite frankly, X felt l i k e  

t h e  degree of success was not encouraging, and I j u s t  

didn't want: t o  operate on t hose  type of patients 

where a lot of them r e a l l y  didn't get s l o t  better. 

I personally relate TMJ surgery to a t y p i c a l  

n e u r o s u r g i c a l  practice, not all .  you r  patients 

survive, and so 3: eliminated that part, but almost 

everything else in o r a l  s u r g e r y  I feel I've kept up 

with. 

So by the tima f ended my eornplote active 

practice in ' 8 8 ,  I had a f a i r l y  f u l l  range of oral 

surgery practice except € o r  specific surgery of the 

TM joint and c l e f t  p a l a t e  and I did not i n c l u d e  -- I 

never  did add surgery of cleft p a l a t e s .  I did very 

limited surgery on c l e f t  p a l a t e ,  v e r y ,  very limited 

MAGNUbl R E P O R T I N G  



1 

2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

but basically the s u r g i c a l  bone, grafting of t h e  

clefts I didn't i n c l u d e  because in t h i s  a r e a  a l m o s t  

9 9  

A 

Q 

A 

a l l  of the work WBE; done at ths university. 

1 knew 1 would see  $0 few of those p a t i e n t s ,  

it wasn't w o r t h  adding that ta my scope of p r a c t i c e  

because 1 would j u s t  see tao few. The important 

i n g r e d i e n t s  of this case  a n d  of the care r e c e i v e d  by 

Mrs, -- 
NEnbazny . 
-- Nabozny are very germane tu the typical .  o r a l  

surgery p r a c t i c e  in the 'GOB, '70s and '803, and 

everything hertz is very run-of-the-mill, bread and 

butter work of almost every  o r a l  surgery practice in 

t h i s  c o u n t r y .  

fn gt;neral  ~ Q W  have your p a t i e n t s  been referred to 

lFOU? 

r: joined a group  of th ree  o r a l  ~ u w g e o n s  who had been 

in practice f o r  a number of years and, in fact, in 

' 6 6  was t h e  only o r a l  surgery office --- no, co r r ec t  

that. We were not the only surgeons in t O k ' n ,  but it 

was a three-man group that had been here f o r  a number 

of years and did the vast majority of the o r a l  

s u r g e r y  work in this c i t y .  

So U V B ~  the yea r s  we have received referrals 

fvom t h e  d @ n t a l  communicy primarily and f r o m  word of 
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mcuth  f r o m  our past patients. 39 third source i n  a 

Limited amount would be the rrredicaf community, and 

even above that, I guess t h e  third choice would just 

be Yellow Pages or what have you, sonrcone needing an 

oral surgeon. 

fo it would be primarily from the dental 

community, then from past patient r e f e r r a l s ,  then 

Yellow Pages, what have you, t h e n  the medical 

community. 

Do you know how many oral. surgeons practice in the 

Madiacrn area? 

Right XIQW there a r e ,  and I atill considax myself 

practicing, right ~ Q W  there a r e  10, There a r e  f o u r  

each in two groups. There is one o t h e r  oral surgeon 

who has practiced alone here since about 1969 or ' 7 0  

and who does not have hospital privileges, does 

strictly office o r a l  surgery and then myself, 

And I believe that when you retired you were with 

three other o r a l  surgeons? 

No, 1 was practicing a l o n e  since March -- X ' m  sorry, 

April 1, 1985 I practiced a l o n e .  Prom April 1, 1985 

until. August 31, 1985. 

When did you first become i n v o l v e d  with t h e  review of 

cases in conne;ction w i t h  lawsuits? 

A l l  of my experience with malpractice litigation of 
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professional S ~ K V I C ~ B  h a s  been in the tiadison 

community, and probably Z became involved with t h a t  

in 3.980. 

Q How d i d  you become i n v o l v e d  in t h a t 7  

A In t h a t  1 was t h e  Becond surgeon who assumed 

responsibility for a patient who required corrective 

surgery from p r e v i o u s  o r a l  m a x i l l o f a c i a l  surgery 

administered by physicians, arid these physicians 

v o l u n t a r i l y  turned this patient's care over to me 

with the statement, "We can't provide what she 

n e e d s  " 

Over the ensuing periods I: did the surgical 

correction, made n e c e s s a r y  e f f o r t s  for in-depth peer 

review w i t h i n  the medical community o f  that hospital 

with nothing being done, and subsequently the patient 

d i d  taka the matter to litigation, and X served as 

the patient's exper t  witness because 1 had been the 

correcting surgeon. And even though the original 

surgery was by M . U . t i ,  1 was qualified to assume all 

the responsibilities and to perform the corrective 

s u r g e r y  that was necessary. 

Since then I have been invalved with similar 

situations in every  hospital in the c i t y  but t h e  V A ,  

and although it's rare to find a practicing surgeon 

of any degree in this country who has served as a 
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plaintiff's expert witness in legal matters in t h e  

city in which he practices, I have done this multiple 

times because I was intimately aware of all the 

conditions of the patient hacause  1 had to do t h e  

corrective surgery and because T ,  quite f r a n k l y ,  

professionalLy felt that ethically 1 had no other 

c h o i c e  h u t  to testify. 

p When you started in 1980 with this litigation process 

i n v o l v i n g  malpractice and all the way up until the 

present, excluding this case, were YOU always the 

treating phyaician who later became involved in it 

and then thereafter was a treating physician and a l s o  

an a x p e r t  witnesfi? 

A Not always. And primarily because at the University 

Hospital, which  is an entirely different wurld, L did 

end up writing a smoking gun letter which fo rced  t h e  

medical staff t o  have a formal board review of a 

chairman of one of the scbsurgical specialties, and 

i n  t h a t  letter there was one patient ment ioned that Y 

had not operated b u t  of which T knew the details of. 

But  st the o t h e r  private hospitals it dealt 

with patients that it had been necessary for me to do 

corrective surgery for. 

Q Since 1 9 8 0  how many malpractice actions have YOU been 

i n v o l v e d  in either R B  an expert, witness or reviewing 
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t h e  matter on behalf of either --  P nsstime for the 

plaintiff? 

l 4R.  DeSAMTIS:  Objection, go ahead .  

A Yea. Years ago, v e r y  fleetingly, 1 t e s t i f i e d  for a 

defendant, B dentist, in the city Ear a case that 

should have nevar gone to court, and it was an older 

man that had had some teeth out by a g e n e r a l  dentist, 

and I had seen the man and he! had a rough area of 

hone near his tongue, and I had testified f o r  the 

defendant in that case because I didn't feel the 

dentist had dana anything wrong, and it was a very 

small matter, happened probably in '67 or ' 6 8 .  1 

vaguely remsmber it. 

Since then I have testified four times as sn 

exper t  witness in this city and g i v e n  multiple 

depositions, and they were a11 f o r  cases t h a t  I had 

operatsd for corrective surgery,  Beginning in -- 
Q When you say multiple depositions, you're t a l k i n g  

about in connection with the four times? 

A With each case, yes, yes. Beginning in J a n u a r y  ' 8 8 ,  

with much urging by ~n attorney friend of mine over 

the l a s t  several years of beginning to advertise as 

an  expert witness, my first ad in Trial Magazine was 

i n ,  I'm positkve, January o f  1988. 

Since that time f have been involved with 
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possibly 8 dozen canes. In two or three of t h e s e ,  

from my recommendation, any consideration f o r  suit 

w a ~  ceased. 1 am actively working on -- actively. 
have six to eight C B E O S  where I have reviewed 

material, made determinations, written letters. 

This is the f i r s t  deposition I have ever  

given for a case outside of the City of Madison or 

the State of Wisconsin t h a t  stemmed f rom t h e  

advertising in Trial Magazine, and I do have a 

deposition achaduled f o r  two weeks from today here, 

and I am in the process of setting up a deposition 

for probably the first w e e k  of December in 

Jacksonville, Florida. 

Can you  give me the names of any of the cases that 

you testified in while you were in the City of 

Madison here? 

Stemming here? 

Y e s  

Oh, now, t h r e e  af the f o u r  only dealt with the 

Wisconsin physicians compensation -- malp rac t i ce  

compensation panel, They didn't go to circuit court, 

if that would help you. Three of the four -- three 
of the four depositions, you know, were with the 

malpractice panel, and so there are c a s e s .  One of 

them w a s  Agnes Woodbury, 

2.3 

I 
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Well, let RIP? ask you this. J don't need to know the! 

nannes of these if they're not in a n y  way similar to 

ths f a c t  pattern i n  t h i s  c a s e .  

oh, no. They were -- no. 'X'tia one at the Vnivarsity 

Hospital was vaguely similar, j u s t  v a g u a l y ,  and it 

was n fracture, but he C R ~ E !  out with a permanent numb 

lip, and I had seen the patient to taka out m u l t i p l e  

abscessed teeth shortly a E t e r  they had treated the 

fracture, and f was greatly suspect  of the treatment 

rendered for two reasons, 

In treating the fracture, they should have 

removed t h e  multiple abscessed teeth and didn't have 

the capability, and two, the manner in which they 

treated the f r & c t u r @ ,  the young man was numb and 

probably numb forever on both sides, but f was 

treating him only to remove abscessed teeth after 

they treated the fracture. 

This never went to a deposition, never went 

to -- but it WBS one aspect of the letter I wrote to 

the vice chancellor at the university. So the others 

wore -- two were fractures with continuing infection 

but nothing as severe ad this case, and the third was 

an orthognathic surgery trying to reposition part of 

the lower jaw with long-term infection, b u t  nothing 

similar to this, to the type of infection w e  wers 
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dealing w i t h  in this case. 

Q You've testified OK you will be testifying regarding 

the f a i l u r e  to meet t h e  standard of care. Have any 

of yuuw other cases been similar in the sense that 

t h e  physician failed to meet t h e  s r m d a r d  of c a r @  

like the allegation here in this case? 

MK. DeSANTIS: Objection. Go 

ahend. 

THE: WITNESS: I ' m  s o r r y ,  go ahead.  

1dH L DeSANTTS : No, I ' rfl  just 

registering my objection. YQU go ahead and 

tx-iGJwer 'I 

A As best f u n d e r s t a n d  your question, to some deqrae,  

y a s ,  When Z, say failure to meet the s t a n d a r d ,  i n  my 

opinion, a s  if board certified oral surgeon and one  I: 

a ~ ~ u m e  to be an expert; in this area from my prRctice 

and my qualifications, so from my determination, yes, 

in chat they were treating infections, postoperativa 

infections inadequately and totally -- in most cases  

I f e e l  l i k e  f can say almost a totally i n e p t  manner, 

in a l l  cases  of treating postop infections. 

B u t  the: o r i g i n a l  cause of the treatments were 

triggered differently, were triggered by fractures or 

attempting to reposition a portion of the jaw.  

Q Hell, I'm t r y i n g  to find o u t  t h e  names of t h e  cases 
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where you've  gone on record either in deposition or 

in the courc system itself where you have come out 

and criticized another physician regarding t h e i r  

failure to treat somebody postoperatively and an 

infection resulted. Whether or not it's the same 

severity doesn't matter to me, hut you undarstand my 

que B t i on? 

X Y e s ,  and 1 can give you two o f  those. There's 

Pqnes Woodbury vs. Donovan and Donovan. Well, t h e  

real case  was DOrkQVBLn, Donovan, Dibb le  and St. Mnrys 

Hospital, hut Dibble and S t ,  MaryrJ Hospi ta l  were 

relieved of any connection with the c a s e ,  and the 

Panel findings were for the plaintiff at the Panel 

Level against Donovan and Donovan, and this w8s -- 
Q How would one go about getting a copy of your 

testimony regarding this matter? 

A You c o u l d  either contact Agnes Woodbury's attornay, 

which would be Jeffrey Kravat, and X can give you his 

name and address  or the Wisconsin PEinel, which 

they -- while they'vs done away with the panels as of 
'87, t h e y  still have a l l  the files and t hey  still 

have the Compensation Panel office, 

Q N o w  do you spell Jeffrey's last name? 

Ea K-r-a-v-a-t. 

Q And he'5 an attorney practicing in Madison? 
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27  

Yes ,  and I can get you h i s  address and phone number. 

The Wisconsin P a n e l ,  what's the f u l l  name of that 

o r g a n i z a t i o n ?  

Wisconsin medical compensa t ion  -- Wisconsin  

Compensation Pane l .  I. don't know. I t  had about f o u r  

or five t e r m  w i t h  i t .  I t ' s  i n  ths Yellow Pages.  I: 

can f i n d  i t  l n  the baok f o r  you .  They s t i l l  have a 

phone number, and t h e y  s t i l l  &re i n v o l v e d .  

T h e r e  i s  one o t h e r  case t h a t  neve r  went t o  

d a p o s i t i o n  o r  m y t h i n g  t h a t  -- w e l l ,  no ,  X: b e t t e r  

n o t .  The re  w a s n ' t  enough t~ t h a t  for t h a t  t o  be of 

any s u b s t a n c e ,  The other case of infection would be 

Beardsley, John B e a r d s l e y ,  B-e-ar-d- s--1-e-y, T t h i n k .  

Beardslay v s .  Dernergian, 

€low do you spa11 that one? 

D-e-m-e-r-g-i-a-n. He is since dlslceased, Dernargian, 

b u t  he was found g u i l t y  by t h e  P a n e l .  

Mas t h i s  a l s o  a m a t t e r  that was presented to t h e  

Wisconsin medical compensa t ion  p a n e l ?  

Y e s .  Nei ther  of t h e s e  went to circuit: court. I n  

both cases the p a n e l  found  f o r  the p l a i n t i f f s ,  and so 

t h e y  d i d  n o t  i n t o  c i r c u i t  court. E i t h e r  s i d e  

c o u l d  have pursued t h a t  f u r t h e r ,  b u t  n e i t h e r  side 

chose to, 

So i f  1 u n d e r s t a n d  your  t e s t i m o n y  a l l  t o t a l ,  you've 
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been  i n v o l v e d  i n  approximately f o u r  different matters 

in the Madison area regarding t e s t i f y i n g  as an  expe r t  

witness, and t h e n  s i n c e  you r  ad t h a t  waE p l i ~ c e d  in 

t h e  Tritii Magazine i n  Januatry of '88 you've had 

approx imate ly  a dozen requests f o r  you to revie% 

matters? 

Y B S .  1 t h i n k  I've had t h a n  R dozen  c o n t a c t s .  

I've had maybe -- I think I'm g e t t i n g  close t o  1 0  or 

1 2  where I've actur1lll.y reviewed matters  and probably 

12, in t h a t  area. I n  two or three of t h o s e  my review 

initiated cessation of the matter, and i n  the o t h e r s  

t h a t  are be?ing reviewed, t h i s  i s  the f i r 8 t  one t h a t  

has gone t o  a deposition. 

X have  w r i t t e n  opinion l e t t e r s  in four o r  

five cases where I felt I had enough i n f o r m a t i o n  to 

s t a t e  an  o p i n i o n  -- that's f o u r  o r  f i v e  where X f e l t  

X could s ta te ,  an  opinion oE s u b s t a n d a r d  care, T h a t  

doesn't include t h e  t w o  or t h r e e  where my o p i n i o n  

caused t h e  tiactions t o  c e a s e .  

Where do you s t a n d  w i t h  respect t o  t h e  o t h e r  f o u r  t o  

six? 

Again, 1 have a deposition s c h e d u l e d  for November 2 1  

here and  am t o  s e t  up a d e p o s i t i o n  in Jacksonville, 

Flo r ida  for probably early December, 

T just wrote detailed l e t t e r  on a matter i n  
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Xowa that I don't know i f  it wi13 go into an 

additional deposition or not, and X've got two cases 

in Michigan, I think, where I believe t h e  next step 

would be a deposition i f  they choose, and I'm 

waiting -- I've just got the initial information ~n a 

case from Atlanta, Georgia that there's no doubt in 

my mind I have enough mzterial to know that T believe 

there  is substandard care but haven't even initiated 

anything w i t h  the attorney. 

Q Other  than the two or threo which you said that after 

your review r e s u l t e d  in the cessation o f  the 

litigation, as far as you know, have the o t h e r  10 or 

so matters, have you found  there to be substandard 

care? 

A My o p i n i o n  has been from the information I'm given 

that there was, yes.  

Q Haw@ any of those other caEjes whrsxe you did find 

substandard care? or in the two or three where YOU 

have found no substandard care, hav@ t h e y  been 

similar to the facts in this case? 

A One of the cases where I felt there was no 

substandard care was somewhat similar, and that was 

infection of the upper j a w ,  but it was anterior -- it 
did not get: to be near as severe as this or n e a r  as 

complicated, and once I f e l t  I got sufficient 
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documents to review and, in fact, my initial opinion 

from just what was rolayad to me over the p h o n e ,  I 

felt t h e r e  was probable substandard ca re .  

Once they were able to s e n d  me s i 1  t h e  

details and I could put things together, I: W R S  able 

to contact them and say in this matter, I don't 

beiieve t h e  oral su rgeon  did anything whatsoever 

substandard and here's why, and there 9789 a couple of 

little missing ingredients you had to put together to 

ahow that while t h i s  was an unfortunate s e r i e a  of 

circumstances and the patient did have some 

discomfort and went through some problems and some 

infeceion problem, was in the hospital for one night 

fGr IV antibiotics and everything, Z felt there was 

absolutely -- it was a unique series of l i t t le.  

circumstaneea and n o t  really substandard care by t h e  

oral surgean. 

How do you r e f e r  to that particular f i l s ' ?  Is there a 

name, t h a t  you can r e c a l l ,  t o  that file? 

No. It was from Illinois, and I can lay my hand on 

it fairly quick. It's in my basement  in my f i l e s ,  

but  this was sometime last year, and I wrote them a 

detailed letter, 

In fact, it was the wife of a senior partner 

of the attorney who contacted me  and three years W R S  
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running o u t ,  and it was a sx~aI.1 town with the same 

group o f  o r a l  surgeons that were t w o  o l d e r  brothers 

and two s o n s  and SQ forth and a very s m a l l  town and 

it was ticklish, arid the lady j u s t  wanted to find o u t  

what happened and was T wronged and everything, 

On the csurface i t  1 o o k i ~ d  l i k e  she  really was, 

and when you got right down to it, it W B E  j u s t  v e r y  

unfortunate and could have happened to anyone at any 

time, and she just wasn't getting any answers. 

Nobody wanted to talk about i t ,  so nobody wanted to 

tell h e r  what happened, 

I could lay my hand on it, but once I g o t  all 

the x-rays and saw the sequence of events  and 

everything, I felt like I was able. to give them a 

good rationale for what had occurred, the sequence of 

events. 

Would you be willing to provide Mr, DeSantis and 

myself with 8 copy of your file in that case? 

Sure. 1 can pull that. 

How d i d  you become involved to review this particular 

case, the Nabozny case? 

I: assume through my ad in Trial Magazine. 

Wow were you contacted and when? 

1 r ece ived  a letter, I guess -- wait a minute. SO I 

received my first letter !fay 5, 1983 -- no, 1 
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received a phon@ c a l l  first. 

Q From whom? 

k The first letter is signed by Richard Zeiger ,  s o  

either from Attorney Zeiger or Attorney DeSBntis from 

their office, the o f f i c e  of Raufnmn & Cumberland. 

Q You don't remember t h e  date when you rece ived  the 

first telephone call? 

A 1 did not keep a record because I'm s u r e  at: that time 

we tallred f o r  a while abou t  my qualifications, and T 

sent them a copy of my CV and of my fee schedule f o r  

expert witness and left it to them if they wanted  to 

send me any o t h e r  infarmation, 

So with the Eirst letter v i a  Federal Express 

X received a packet, and the letter 15; d a t e d  May 5 ,  

1988, and they indicate the documents that they s e n t  

me. 

6 Can I a s k  you if you have a copy of your fee  

schedule? 

W I do. I can get  i t .  Y e s ,  and X don't have that -- 
that's in the basement ,  Let's make a l i s t ,  and I ' l l  

get these. 

Q 50 you recall what your fee arrangement is? 

A Yes. Basically it's $900 tu review a case, $ 2 0 0  an 

hour and $1,800 a day and if I traval, p l u s  expenses, 

and that's pretty much it. 
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By the way, what is the arrangement f o r  your 

deposition today? 

We just talked abou t  that, and f guess my bill to you 

would be primarily just for the time today, you know, 

in a round number, and I'll be g lad  to come up w i t h  

sometking we both agree on, three or four hou r s  ox- 

whatever, whatever is customary, b u t  Mr. Deijantis 

said that anything that 1 did pricr, which has been 

quite a few h o u r s ,  should be- to his office. 

So primarily yours would be just for what wa 

would agree OR for today, 

Okay. The Letter that YOU received fram $ I r e  Zeiger, 

Could I I Q o k  at it? 

Oh, certainly. And L bel ieve .  9 still have everything 

that W B S  listed that- he sent me. I don't think I 

returned anything. In one or t w o  C B S S S  I've returned 

some x-rays or some photographs, but in this c m e  I 

think T s t i l l  have everything that was originally 

sent to me. 

Would it be possible for us to g e t  copies -- 
Sure. 

-- of your file, including the articles and then we 

can  mark these? 

MR. MEADOR: Is that agreeable, 

F r a n k ,  to do t h a t  that way instead of me 
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m a r k i n g  everything now and s lowing  down the 

deposition? 

MR. DaSANTXS: Yea.  What do you 

want, j u s t  not to --. 

MR. MEADOR: I j u s t  want t o  get the 

whole file and have i t  a l l  marked, 

MP.. DeSANTIS: Sure. You want to 

take a break and do t h a t ?  

THE WITNESS: J can g e t  S h i r l e y .  

MR. MEADOR: Why don't wcs. wait, 

until. the end. 

THE WITNESS: Or I can g e t  Shirley 

to do i t  real q u i c k .  

MR. HEADOR; We can do it 

afterwards. 

THE WITNESS: Okay. I've got a 

p r e t t y  good copy machine down there. We can 

just go down and fire them o f f ,  

So you showed m e  t h e  May 5 t h ,  1988 letter f rom 

Wr. Zeiger? 

Yes s 

And the items t h a t  are listed 1 t h r o u g h  Y are  t h e  

items t h a t  were enclosed with t h a t  l e t t e r ?  

Yes. 

And may I look at t h e  statement of Mrs. Nabozny t h a t  
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was provided to you? 

MR. DeSkNTIS: Objection. I don't 

think it says the statement of Ws. FJabozny. 

I t h i n k ,  number one, i t  says  en € a c t  summary. 

Y e s ,  E assume that's --- 
That's what X wanted, thank you, 

(Shart recesg is taken1 

So you reviewed the materials that were sent to you 

with the May 5th, 198& letter, ia t h a t  right? 

Yen. 

And then what d i d  you do after ~ Q U  rev iewed  t h e  

rn a t e r 1. El f s ? 

M e  had a conversation OK WB had probably t w o  or three 

conversations, and when TI say we, I can't: recall how 

many times I might have talked to Mr. Zeiger or i f  -- 
t h e  bulk of my conversations have  been w i t h  

Mr. DeSantis, but somewhere -- well, as of May 1 2 t h '  

' 8 8  1 wrote them a letter that I felt documented my 

o p i n i o n  of reading t h e  file, 

Between your review, which I assume occurred on or 

after May 5th of 1983, and your letter expressing 

your o p i n i o n ,  and the l e t t er  is dated May X2th, 1988 

t h e r e  was approximately -- 
A w e e k ,  

-- a week 's  t i m e  in there. How many conversations, 
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if you can recall, did you have w i t h  t h e  attorneys 

f rom KPaufman & Cumberland? 

P o s B i b l y  one or two very brief Ones as to the f a c t  

that they were rasldy for me t o  g i v e  them a written 

report of my views o f ,  you know, what I f e l t  I could 

determine from the racords. 

You had an opinion, though, a f t e r  y o u r  review of the 

records? 

Y e s ,  and 1 stated it in that letter of May 1 2 t h .  

Did y o u r  opinion a f t e r  you rev iewed  t h e  records on 

May 5th change at a l l  a f t e r  you had t h e  conversations 

d u r i n g  t h e  week befors you -- 
O h ,  no. 

Before you wrote down your opinion? 

No. 

And does your opinion today, fa i t  consistent with 

your l e t t e r  of May 12th of 1 9 8 8 1  

It's consistent, b u t  it's expandad, rt's in IUOTE! 

depth. The opinions I have now from going over the 

articles and other f a c t o r s ,  basically it's t h e  same 

opinion, but -- 
It may be more detailed? 

Yes. 

Prior t o  writing your  opinion, which is in the 

May 12th, 1988 letter and, by t h e  way, why d o n ' t  w e  
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mark that Exhibit 2. Can I use this one? 

Sure. 

{Exhibit 2 is marked for identification) 

Doctor, handing you w h a t ' s  been marked B S  Williams 

Exhibit 2, that Is the opinl.un which you have 

e X p L ' Q S B @ d l ,  is that co r r cc t ?  

Yea. 

And that's the May P2th, 1988 letter? 

Yes. * 

Prior to arriving a t  your opinion in the May 12th, 

1988 letter, you had reviewed only those materials 

that were sent l o  you with the May 5 t h ,  1988 letter, 

is t h a t  right? 

Correct e 

And there were no other things that you reviewed, is 

that true? 

That's true. 

When did you review those articles, the nine articles 

which you're going to copy for me? 

Oh,  wall, I started accumulating them over the summer 

as I was getting ready to c l o s e  my office. I went 

through a l l  my journals from '65 or '66 and w a B  

taking o u t  articles under various subjects, copying 

them or taking them aut and for some various 

subjects, a n d  one of them was for infections. 
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And s i n c e  then 1 have reviewed the articles 

t h a t  X took out, this seriea specifically, f o r  t h e  

c a r @  of Ms. Naboany. 

Those a r t i c l e s  would have baen gathered by you after 

your  letter of May 12th, 2988? 

Yea ,  yes, 

During the course of your many y e a r s  i n  practice, I 

a8sume that you have performed multiple extractions 

where it would involve 12 teeth? 

Hundreds of times. I n  fact, unfortunately, i n  the 

' G O B  and early '70s w e  extracted f a r  more teeth than 

we do now, and when 3 first joined t h e  group in the 

'6jos, we used to take out a lot of t e e t h ,  and I have 

had people under general anesthetic in my office for 

over an hour at one time, and I've taken up to 32 

t e e t h ,  i n c l u d i n g  four impactions, 

In one sitting? 

On a young man that was in his tesns and every third 

t o o t h  was decayed, and it was just nothing else to 

do, and I still think of him, and t h a t  was ' 6 5 .  

What's your typical procedure when you perform 

multiple extractions? 

The vast majority of my patients were t r e a t ed  under 

general anesthetic administorod by myself, and I have 

told people  over the yea r s  1 truly believe that, no 
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matter how many teeth they needed out, it W R S  f a r  

better to do them all at one@, and it was v e r y ,  very 

fntrequ@nt that X would put darneon@ in the hospital 

just to remove teeth unloss t h e y  had a niedical 

problem t h a t  demanded hospitalization. 

Mosrt of the c a s e s  throughout the years were 

dona in either o f f i c e  that I: practiced in in pretty 

much the same way. 

What do you normally review prior to doing the 

extractions? 

Well, '4~e'x-e far better now than wet were in the  OS;, 

but WB would have a rnediccsf history and anything from 

the referring dentist we might have, although a lot 

of peapfe would come in and say, *'I want all Ey" -- 
"I need all. my t e e t h  out," and even before they had 

an appointment had gone to a dentist, eay, in B 

smaller town and s a i d ,  "I'm going to have all my 

teeth aut up at K e l l y ,  Griffin, Lynn in Madison. 

Will. you make  my dentures" or something like t h i s ,  

So it wasn't an infrequent t h i n g  f o r  me to 

maybe make the initial d i a g n o s i s  and treatment plan, 

and I have spent many hours trying to t e l l  people 

they didn't need as many t e e t h  out  as they thought 

they did, but there was quite a few people who were 

not referred from anyone,  and the first real x-ray 
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B u t  her case and the material I SBB here, and 

I used this phrase earlisr, is just a run-of-the-mill 

o r a l  s u r g e r y  case, very typicnl of things 1 have seen 

since dental school even and i n t e r n s h i p ,  much less my 

residency and private practice. 

Q In your private practice in those cases where a 

patient was referred to you by a dentist who already 

had EA treatment: p l a n  for her, what would you 

normally, i f  you were just a phase or part of that 

treatment p l a n ,  what would you n o r m a l l y  see when you 

first saw the patient, the x- rays that were t a k e n ,  is 

that.  right? 

A Usually in my p rac t i c e  the front offfcc people would 

get the pertinent history and paperwork, and 8s the 

patient was being firat taken! sent to t h e  bathroom 

because they were going to have general anesthetic 

and then t a k e n  to operatory, the surgical assistant 

would give me the chart with  t h e  x-rays. And i n  moat 

cases I would have seen the x-ray before X might  see 

t h e  patient, but in a very  short period of time I 

would see both x- ray  and patient. 

Q Were these any other materials that you n o r m a l l y  

reviewed p r i o r  to doing the multiple extractions? 

k Well, again the medical history was the -- first 
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determination is is this patient a good candidatc for 

an office surgery and then, in most cases, for a 

general anesthetic. 

so our biggest decision, which is technically 

a history and physical as one would g e t  in a hospital 

by a physician, is the determination c a n  you do this 

patient in the offics and then can you do them under 

general anesthetic. Are they a good riak f o r  either 

or both of t hese  categories. 

And then in your private practice prior to performing 

the surgery, do you explain to t h e  patient what 

you’rf;3 about to do? 

Y e s .  

Do you have a consent form t h a t  you used in your 

practice? 

M y  consent form in my solo practice of the last three 

y e a r s  was -- in fact, most of the years I practiced 

we did not have a consent form, We did not: use one. 

When did you start using a consent form? 

I can’t r e c a l l .  We had a consent form when T was 

w i t h  the group, and I don‘t know how many years, and 

then when X started my privata practice, I had a 

consent. form for most typical o r a l  surgery work in 

the office. 

Then X also went to a separate consent form 
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for orthognathic surgery and a separate consent form 

for implants and in rare cases a fileparate cansent 

form f o r  any unusual thing that J might  do. 

When you s a i d  in your prtvate-3 practice, you mean when 

you went aut on your own? 

My ~ ~ l . 0  practice from '85 to ' 8 8 .  X went: ta multiple 

conr;ant  forms f o r  different specific types of 

surgery -- orthognathic surgery, bone grafts, 
implents, things of this n a t u r e  which were much more 

detailed than t h e  small half sheet type c o n s e n t  form 

S use f o r  the routine office clinical oral surgery 

extractions, impactions. 

What DE-. Chegla did f o r  Mrs. Nirbozny would have been 

t h e  routine o r a l  surgery? 

Very, vary routine, r u n- o f- t h e- m i l l .  

Which would have used the shorter consent fo rm in 

your practice? 

Yea. 

Do you still have copies -- 
Yes * 

-- of the short form? 
Yes. Yes, I can get you a copy of my consent form. 

Does your consent form deal with the possibility of 

complications after the surgery? 

Yes. 
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And what  re the complications that, the patient fs 

advised of on your consent form either in writing or 

by yourself oraXly? 

W a l l ,  I think a l l  of tho surgical assistants who 

worked in e i t h e r  office I worlted at, either the group  

or when I: had my solo office, w i l l  tell you I tended 

to spend a considerable period of time with my 

patients and would talk in mare specific things for 

any factor8 I saw related to their case.  

So if I 6&w someone with an ora1 condition 

that indicated possible consideration for 

postoperative infection or something, I would t e n d  to 

go i n t o  t h a t  with these patients and things of this 

nature. It would d e a l  with infections, it would deaf  

with impactions, with numb lip, It would deal in 

severe impactions with possible fracture of the jaw. 

It would deal with a multitude of passibls 

postoperative complications that would vary depending 

on t h e  cas9, so routine extractions, one af the 

biggest things would be infection f o r  these people. 

h t 6 s  assume t h a t  Mrs. Nabozny went into your office 

in June of ' 8 6 .  What kind of complications would you 

have explained to her t h a t  may r e s u l t  a f t e r  t h e  

multiple extractions? 

In l o ~ k i n g  at the copy of the x-rays sent to me, 
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again, S cansider these x-rays and things t o  indicate 

a typical. routine oral s u r g e r y  case, nothing out of 

the o r d i n a r y ,  comething I’ve s e e n  literally hundreds  

of times, and one of the things that f would say to 

her -- sf course, from the records t h a t  I’ve read, 

she went in indicating that she had been very  lax 

a b o u t  dental care. 

She knew her teeth were in bad condition. 

Dr. Sangrick’s notes indicated that she had gum 

disease and red gums and everything, so the potential 

for infection is eortainly t h e r e  for anyone taking 

out her teeth. 

So YOU would have told her that? 

Without a question this would be QTPB f a c t o r ,  Also, 

the impacted wisdom tooth shows the roots near the 

nerve canal, so you would consider possible numb lip 

paresthesia. 

Of what? 

Of paresthesia, numb lip from removing an impacted 

wisdom tooth in a mature individual, and slim chance 

here of maybe opening into the sinus and some sinus, 

you know, complications. 

That’s basically the biggest things you would 

you see would be considerations with impaction, 

considerations with potential postop infection snd a 
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s l i m  chance for maybe opening into t h e  sinus, which 

would delay healing. 

Would you say that based  upon what you do know about 

Mrs. Nabozny, not knowing what has happened after h e r  

surgery, what would you s a y  the percentages of her 

dsvefoping an infection would be based upon your 

review of her x-rays as they were back in June of 

' 86? 

That's easy f o r  m e  to answer in that when 1 talked to 

my pRtients, 1: t r i e d  to g i v e  them some s p e c i f i c  -- Z 

used p9 lot of analogies. 

And in something like this, I would say 

something v e r y  typical to if 1 were to a p e r a t e  on 10 

pationts l i k e  this, less than h a l t  of them w i l l  need  

antibiotics, but a few of them w i l l ,  and we don't 

know who. 

So I probnbly would not: have started her on 

antibiotics at t h e  time of extraction but would have 

assumed that this v e r y  readily could occur 

postoperatively, and so when I talked to patients, I 

would usually relate things in numbers like that, 

that if I do 10 or 20 of these, I know t h a t  less t han  

half are going to get infection. 

But. I know that a small percent probably 

definitely will and that f may well have to put you 
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on antibiotics later and occasionally -- mare t h a n  

occasionally I would actually say to patients, "Po 

you tend to get infections easy, would you be mare 

comfortable  if I started you on an antibiotic," 

because I've occasionally had people tall me, "Oh, I: 

get infections easy .  X want to be on antibiotics." 

With a condition l i k e  this, multiple B O U K C ~ S ,  

1 would be comfortable starting them, but only i f  a 

patient kind of nudged m a ,  pu5hod me into starting 

the day of surgery. In most ca&es looking like this, 

I would not have started her on antibiotics but would 

aCsurne the potential is there. 

Q You've talked about what you would have t o l d  the 

patient in regards to the possibility of infection. 

Would you also have told the patient what you would 

have expected in terms of the pain that may result 

after the surgery? 

A Yes, 1 tended to tell these patients, and it's very 

specific, about if I felt I had t o  tell them they 

fell in a category that showed some potential for 

needing antibiotics, than I would tell them. 

S e e ,  I normally used sutures that dissolved, 

cut sutures, and so I w o u l d  tell my patients, "I 

don't have to see you if you're doing fine, but T 

need to see  you for the slightest thing," and for 
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t h e s e  patients I would say ,  *'I have  to know if y o u f r e  

h a v i n g  any problem. You don't call me. You come in. 

1 have to see you. I have to know i f  you're starting 

to g e t  any problem," and so these things f would be 

very specific with. 

Xn the casa o€ Mrs. Nabozny with ht3r having 12 teeth 

e x t r a c t e d ,  what would you hnvst e x p e c t e d  the l e n g t h  of 

her pain would have baen? 

My feeling -- 
Not knowing what we know, 

Yes. I think I know what you mean. Normally J: t o l d  

people who w e m  having multiple extractions that, 

quite frankly, I have less problem with t h i s  type of 

patient than any o t h o r  type patients, i e e . ?  

impactionc, root canal, apicoectomies, and I'va said 

thia o f t e n .  

Usually when I take multiple t e e t h  o u t  of 

p e o p l e ,  I expect them t o  f e e l  il lot better w i t h i n  

four or five days. Now, har impaction would throw en 

entirely different liqht on that, and I would have to 

say from the site of your impaction that's going to 

be totally different, but these other areas 1 would 

expect you to feel a Tot better in four to five days. 

So four to five days of p a i n  in the area  -- 
of simple extraction. 

MAGNUM REPORTING 



1 

2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

Q --  of the simple extraction would be normal as f a r  EIB 

you woufd say?  

A Yas. 

Q And BS far as the area involving the impacted tooth, 

that would ba a n  area where you would expect p a i n  a 

little bit longer? 

A In four or f i v e  days you would start to know if 

you're getting into the dry s o c k e t  postoperative 

osteitis syndrome, t h e  one that most people have 

heard about where YOU have your wisdom teeth out and 

it can hurt for a week or 10 days. 

Those people t h a t  would get "dry D o c k e t "  

would have symptoms of that within four or € i v e  days, 

and then you can s t a r t  to separate, which is 

primarily j u s t  packed, medicated gauze in this big 

h a l e  that the wisdom tooth farmerly occupied .  Or if 

you're having problem5 from the other mora routine 

extraction sites but two entirely different 

postoperative clinical scenarios, you would expect 

what a practicing oral surgeon  would expect. 

Q Mrs. Nabozny, h e r  impacted t o o t h  was on which side of 

her faca? I 
A T can't tell from this. Oh, wait a minute. I think 

he s a i d  17 was impacted, which would be the left 

side, but l e t  me find his chart. Seventeen, which 
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wauld be the left side, 80 t h e  opposite of t h e  side 

where she ultimately had the prcrblems. 

So on the fcsf t  side you could expect p a i n  for about a 

w e e k ?  

Sure. 

And that would s t i l l  bse within normal limit? 

S u r e .  

And that would not be alarming t o  you as an  o r a l  

surgxeon; however, on the other side, t h e  right side 

o f  Mrs. Nabozny'rs face, you would expect t h e  pain to 

be four to five days, and that would s t i l l  ba in t h e  

range of normalcy, is that true? 

Yes, I agrerl w i t h  that, b u t  I would add something 

additional in t h a t  any time you work in the mouth, 

the potential for infection is there. P o s t o p e r a t i v e  

infections related w i t h  lower impacted wisdom t e e t h  

are quite different fram postoperative infections of 

the upper j aws .  Postoperative infections in the 

upper jaws are less frequent, but can be f a r ,  f a r  

more serious. 

Which kind sf infection did Mrs. Nabozny have? 

From the upper jaw, back in t h e  spaces and from t h e  

upper j a w ,  and so the -- 
How do you know t h a t  t h e  site of infection isn't on 

the lower j a w  and that it moves to t h e  upper jaw and 
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moves into -- 
What you d o n ’ t  know for sure,  except I believe they 

got drainage from t h a t  a r e a ,  from the area and from 

read ing  the r e p o r t s ,  1 sense that they felt like it 

was from the upper extraction sockets. P l u s  when you 

read t h e  articles I have and if you were to go into 

them, u s u a l l y  lower jaws will be i n  different spaces 

than upper  j a w s ,  b u t  i t  could have come from either 

one. You’re absolutely right. 

The other indication i a  t h a t  during the peals 

of her infection, shortly after .&mission t o  t h e  

hospital, shw also had h e r  right sinus completely 

full of pus -- of exudate ,  and this would not have 

occurred from the lower socket, She c o u l d  have had 

Some f rom both. 

From looking at h e r  x-rayI I just f e e l  t h a t  

t.he primary source was from the upper, but this we’re 

kind of splitting hairs, Whatever its source, onceS 

it was there, it’s kind of a moot p o i n t  was i t  from 

t h e  upper or lower tooth. 

We don’t really know the actual source of the 

i n f e c t i o n ?  

N o ,  b u t  X think that p e o p l e  going over all the 

records, the c o n s e n s u s  of a group of maxillofacial 

experts would feel that it was from t h e  upper 
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primarily. 

Q No, but I mean we dan't know what actually introduced 

the! infection into Mrs. Wabozng's system, do we? 

A Oh, there's na question in my mind it was t h e  day of 

extractione. In my mind from reading it, I f ee l  that 

t h e  initial -- the initiating sourca o f  the infection 

W B B  the extractions. In o t h e r  wards, I'm not 

surpr i sed  that she ended up with what she had f rom 

thc series of events that I read through the records. 

Q No, I don't know if we're talking about the same 

thing. Do you know what it was that actually 

introduced the infection into Mrs. Nabozny's system? 

A I think ths forceps extraction of the t e e t h  and 

rQOtS. 

Q So you think it W B B  Dr, Chepla'ts forceps that 

introduced the bacteria that eventually resulted in 

her infection and her problem? 

A I think any o r a l  surgeon in the country removing 

those teeth would have had the potential to get the 

exact same infection. Z don't think it. was just 

Dr. Cheplet. 

I think anyone with the ability to assume the 

responsibility in removing those t e e t h  would have had 

the potential of getting the same infection just from 

the act of removing those teeth. 1 think the! removal 
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of' t h e  teeth on, was it J u l y  8th or whatever, was the 

i n i t i a l  source of her infection, W B B  the d a t e  of 

extraction -- the things that happened in her  mouth 

on t h e  dote of extraction w a s  the initiating cause of 

her future infection. 

Okay. I t h i n k  I understand your answer, but 1 s t i l l  

am n o t  certain whether or not YOU'TE saying that t h e  

E O U ~ C B  of the bacteria which was introduced into her 

system, where that source was. 

Oh, f r o m  the teeth, from the retained r o o t s  and the 

low grade chronic i n f e c t i o n  around the teeth and just 

the infection of the mouthp the inflamed gums and so 

forth, 

So I don't think in any way Dr, Chepla caused 

t h e  i n f e c t i o n  by inadequate means of removing t h e  

t e e t h .  I think just the fact that t h i s  lady h a s  

chronic infection i n  her mouth and h a s  for months or 

y e a r s ,  which she claims, and so she haa a l o w  grade 

i n f e c t i o n  in her mouth all the time. The mouth on 

everyone is filthy and has more bacteria than any  

other part of the body. 

She has a constant low grade infection, and I 

think the mere fact of trying t o  remove t.hese teeth, 

which needed to be removed, introduced some of this 

bacteria i n t o  deeper levels of the maxillary area and 
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particularly back behind the tuberosity and back 

b e h i n d  the bone of the ~ L v ~ o l u s ,  and then when you 

get beneath t h e  attached soft tissue, gum tissue 

that's tightly atttichad, you start getting into a r e a s  

of tissue spaces and tissue that is not tightly 

attached, and B O ~ B  bacteria just inadvertently got 

stlatcd in this area and proceeded to slowly incubate. 

How do you know that the bacteria that caused her 

infection is thcs same kind of bacteria t h a t  was in 

h e r ,  as you say,  h e r  low grade chronic condition? 

Well, now, no one can ever say precisely, you know, 

where the bacteria of her infection or where it came 

from because t h e  amount of organisms and the 

variation of organisms in everyone's mouth i s  very 

broad 

It is ra re  to have an infection with pus, a 

cellulitis 01- an abscess in the mouth and be able to 

get a culture and sensitivity and give  an unequivocal 

specific diagnosis b e c a u s e  if you get pus o u t  of the 

mouth, it will almost always come back normal oral 

flora, but w i t h  an abundance of such and such, staph, 

strep, what have, you, which abounds in the mouth. 

SO the trouble in dealing with infections i n  

the mouth is you can't be  precise as to what the 

bacteria was or what its source was because if he put 
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h e r  to sleep Bznd then injected with ea l o c a l  

anesthetic, the needle might have transmitted some, 

which can happen, As he removed - -  he says  he d i d  a n  

a l v e o l e c t o m y  of the tuberosity. Sa that rrreane 

cutting t h e  gum, pulling the t i s sue  back (3 little 

bit, smoothing t h e  bons, curating o u t  the l o w  grade 

infection, she had the chronic absceErses, and 

suturing h e r  up, So that's introducing u n d e r  the 

tissues. 

Any and every oral surgeon that does this 

would have prabnbly dono it roughly the same way he 

did, and so I don't believe his getting t h e  teeth out 

was substandard, but I think what he had to do and 

what fie describes was the most logical way that the 

o r g a n i s m s  which initiatad subsequent events  got 

deep ly  beneath the tissues enough to cause this, and 

I think t h e  series of events t h a t  she shows and haw 

the infection progresses, in my mind, supports that 

t ook  her awhile, too. 

What is your  understanding o f  Mrs. Nabozny's 

condition as she p r e s e n t e d  t o  Dr. Chepla?  And by 

t h a t  I mean the health o f  htrr mouth, 

I'm sorry, the o r i g i n a l  presentation? 

Yes. 

On the day of extraction? 
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Y e s .  

A g a i n ,  a rcutine, run-of-the-mill oral surgery case 

Q Q  eomeone who has refrained from routine dental care 

for B considerable period of time and now needs  

things cleaned up rapidly to salvnge what is 

salvageable and g e t  h a r  back whera she can function 

G r C i l l y .  

50 the service of the o r a l  surgeon is to get  

out all the things that arc in the way from getting 

the rehabilitation work done and so just remove 

sverything that needs  to be removed and clean things 

up so that usually the referring dentist can get on 

with his treatment p l a n .  

knd again, what I see here is so typical of 

things that I've seen in my office over the years  

that it is just run-of-the-mill oral s u r g e r y .  

You had talked about a chronic condition t h a t  she 

h a d ,  and I know there's a lot af technical terms for 

that. Periodontitis, 1 believe, is one term that 

I've read. Is that what Mrs. Ntibozny had when s h e  

came to Dr, Chepla? 

All right. Gingivitis is inflammation of just the 

gum tissue. Periodontitis is when this inflammation 

starts getting to tha attachment of the gum tissue, 

to the t o o t h  and the bone and is starting to cause 
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$om@ bone loss and going deeper. She a l s o  h a s  -- 
Q D o  you see ev idence  of that in the x-rays? 

k Not a great d e a l ,  a very little, and this is n o t  

uncomnmn i n  some people. People who are mora p r o n s  

to d e c a y ,  many of them will be. less  prone to 

periodontal bone loss, and they feel some of this is 

because  of t h e  pH of t h o  mouth, acidic and alkaline. 

People wha are very acidic will tend to have 

decay and vary l i t t l e  bone; loss, and psople who, v i c e  

versa, can have a lot of bone loss, "Oh, nty teeth are 

g r e a t ,  but my gums are bad," and you'll see very 

little dacay but tremendoua bone loss, 

She shows very l i t t l e  bone loss. She just 

shows that her teeth in many cases have j u s t  rottad 

off to the guns, and why these people never g e t  acute 

abscess where they suddanly @well up you don't know, 

but she'G had these for years and y e t  -- so she has a 

ch ron ic  infection t h a t  has  rarely, if ever, become 

a c u t e .  

She didn't go in with a lot of great gain. 

She s a i d ,  "Well, I've got a couple teeth that are 

starting to hurt me with cold water," but the ones 

with the decay s t a r t e d  getting c l o s e  to the nerves 

where the crowns hadn't decayed dawn to nothing, and 

she said €inally, "I've got such a mess. I t ' s  
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finally time f o r  me to really clean it up and do 

something good," 

But she does have chronic granuloma, which  is 

i n f l a m e d  t f s a u o ,  b u t  not bad .  You know, you don't 

SIPE a lot here. Her body seenrs to be very r e s i s t a n t ,  

and I'm sure t h e  people that u s e d  t o  cross t h e  

Plains, there would be some people who'd g e t  an 

abscessed t o o t h  and maybe die in a f e w  dayti;, and 

there are other people who have teeth rot off t o  che 

gumc and never g e t  abscesses, never swell b a d ,  

never -- you know, there's no way ta explain it, 

But s h e  a p p e a r s  to be one of these people 

t h a t  when t h e  decay s t a r t s  g e t t i n g  near  t h e  nerve, it 

w i l l  hurt h e r  f u r  while, Pf she can  get  t h r o u g h  t h a t  

and then tho nerve m i g h t  die, then she could keep 

going. This crown, if she bites on i t  h a r d ,  t h i s  

upper third molar ,  i t  would probably just crumble to 

n o t h i n g  and yet maybe not have pain for a day o r  two ,  

and you wonder how t h e y  can do i t ,  

So she has had long-standing decay w i t h  

retained r o o t s  and not even a lot of o b v i o u s  

granulomas at the root tips, so she's a v e r y  h a r d y  

individual. Her body indicates t h a t  it has v e r y  good 

response to infection, and I think from what S: r e a d ,  

for h e r  sake, that w a s  fortunate, but you see very 
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little apical infection, 

So the next thing that you go on is from 

Llr. Sangrick's chart that she does have red gums and 

gingivitis and certainly an unhealthy, a chronic 

infection of the soft tissue attachments around the 

teeth, 80 we know it's not rsal healthy, 

Do you know what  t h e  treatment plan was for 

M r s .  Nabozny? 

His record is in here, and it seemed t h a t  basically 

he was g o i n g  t o  g e t  the bad teeth out, send her to a 

periodontist, a gum specialist, to clean up nround 

the t e e t h  t h e y  were going to retain, and then he 

anticipated d o i n g  uper and lower partials, He s a i d  

mainly amalgam fillings, but he was going to get a 

few crowns so he could go to precision attachments, 

which waulcl not have the clasp. 

So it sounded as though he had a v e r y  good 

treatment plan overall f o r  her that would r e t a i n  the 

teeth in the front of both arches with precision 

attachments, would g i v e  her posterior function, which 

she really hadn't had for years. She hadn't r e a l l y  

been chewing food for years. 

Let's take a look at your May 1 2 t h ,  1988 report. 

Okay. 

I n  the first paragraph of your report you have 
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written, "1: have reviewed in detail the documents and 

x-rays pertaining to Mrs. Nabozny's t r e a t m e n t  by 

Dr. William E. Ghepla in J u l y  of 1 3 8 6 . "  The x- r a y s  

t h a t  you reviewed t h a t  you're referring t o  are t h e  

ones  that were prov ided  to Dr. C h e p l a ,  is t h a t  right? 

Yea. I'm sure the duplicates -- and I think i t  notad 

that he received duplicates, didn't he? I. think. 

I'm not suret. 

Yes, you' rc?  talking about Dr. Sangrick's x- rays?  

YeElo 

Which were provided to Dr. Chepla? 

Yes * 

Those a r e  t h e  o n l y  x-rays that you have reviewed in 

connection with this matter?  

Y e s  D 

And the document@ that you refer to in t h a t  first 

paragraph would have been the documents that are 

l i s t e d  in Mr, Zeiger's l e t t e r  of May 5th, 1988, is 

that right? 

Right. 

Have you received any other documents since t h a t  

time? 

I have not received any, no. 

No o t h e r  d e p o s i t i o n s  os anything of that nature? 

No -- did the deposition come with that? L e t ' s  s e e ,  
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A 

Q 

A 

Q 
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Yes, I r e c e i v e d  t h a  deposition transcript a t  the same" 

time, so yes;. So this 2s all X've received was 

a l l  --- 
T h e  d e p o s i t i o n  twranrscript t h a t  you have reviewed is 

Dr. Chepla's deposition, is t h a t  correct? 

Y e s ,  Yes, it was taken  on Monday, the 30th  of 

Noventber, 2.987. 

Have you seen the o t h e r  depasitions that have bean 

t a k e n  i n  this ca$e,  for example, Ur, SEsngriclc gave a 

d e p o s i t i o n ?  

N o ,  I haven't s e e n  i t .  

Did you look a t  Mrs. fdabozny's  dspaaition? 

Not her deposition, o n l y  her summary. 

Okay. 

I haven't seen her deposition, no. I haven't seen 

any other d e p o s i t i o n .  

I n  t h e  third praragrznph of your May ?2th, I988 letter, 

the last s en t ence  it; reads, "Her initial o r a l  surgery 

treatment on July 8, 1986 by Dr. Chepla  w a s  an 

o r d i n a r y  procedure in the average oral surgery 

practice," Have you found any fault with the 

procedure that Dr. Chepla performed on J u l y  8th of 

19861 

2\10 . 
Your next sentence i n  t h e  n c x t  paragraph reads, "And 
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while her oral health on that day did not demand tho 

immediate use oE antibiotics, that condition did 

indicate thint an absolute need for antibiQtici3 might 

prasent itself during the p a s t o p e r a t i v e  recovery 

period.'' 

00 1 understand YOU to mean by that sentence 

that you did n o t  believe t h a t  antibiotics were 

necessary on the day of the surgery, J u l y  8 t h ,  1986, 

however, that afterwards this patient Ehauld have 

been monitorad mom c l o s e l y  to determine whether 

antibiotics wure needed postoperatively? 

NR, DeSANTIS: ObjQction, asked and 

answered, Go ahead and answer. 

A I think P can  give you t h e  answer you're seeking in 

that, s a p ,  there are Borne o r a l  surgeons that I've 

heard of and some g e n e r a l  dentists that extract t e e t h  

who put  almost every patient on antibiotics and if 

Dr, Chepfis or anyone else had started Ms. Nabozny on 

antibiotics, I think it would be difficult for anyone 

to find fault with that. 

I also don't f e e l  you can find fault with the 

fact that he didn't, 6 0  I think in a cross secticn of 

oral surgery practices, some would have started her, 

Some wouldn't. 

Q f believe that if I understood what you s a i d  earlier 
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this afternoon, if you had been treating Mrs. Nabszny 

in June of ' 8 6  instead of Ur, Chepla, you would not 

h a v e  put her an any antibiotics? 

Frobably not -- 
PIP,. DeSANTIS; Objection. That's 

not an accurate characterization of what he 

said. What he s a i d  is he wasn't sure at this 

time what he would do, 

He would discuss with the patient 

whether she was the type of patient who 

infected easily, whether thcr patient had some 

desire to be on antibiotics beforehand, but 

he didn't s a y  absolutely that he would not 

put h e r  an them. 

Any patient with this type mouth and this type 

treatment plan could tip me into starting them on 

antibiotics the day of surgery, but most of them from 

the description of how she presented without acute 

abscess, without acute swelling, I probably would not 

have started h e r  on antibiotics that date, July 8th. 

Are you aware of whether or not Hrs. Nabozny had any 

acute abscess 01 acu te  swelling on J u n e  8th of 1 9 8 6 1  

July 8th. 

July 8th, 1986. 

Only from t h e  records that neither Dr, Sangrick nor 
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D r .  Ghepla nor  her summary in any way indicates she 

came in with any swelling or acute abscess. 

So there appears to be from t h r e e  sources no 

evidence of any acute Infection, and so that's why I 

f e a l  comfortable that on that particufnr day I find 

no fault with he! or anyone e l s e  not starting h a r  on 

antibiotics OR that d a y .  

Xn the next sentence in your report it reads, 

"Evidence supports the fact that such an RbsOlUte 

need did arisa, that Mrs. Nabozny contacted 

Dr. Chepla's office more than once with indications 

of less than uneventful progress and that 

Br. Chepla's respanaes were far less than a d e q u a t e . "  

Let's s t a r t  w i t h  the first p a r t  of that 

sentence where you say,. "Evidencs supports the f a c t  

that such an absolute need did arise." kfhat evidence 

a r e  you refarring to in that s e n t e n c e ?  

AX1 of the events from her coming in to him on, 1 

t h i n k ,  ths 18th and f i n a l l y  being started a n  

antibiotics and her ending up in the hospital with 

ths need for critical care in the treatment of an 

infection. 

Can you be more specific? In particular, what 

evidence? 

Well, a l l  right. Number one, t h e r e  i s  no doubt in my 
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mind that the infection that Mrs. Nabozny wcquired 

and was forced to deal with originated and stemmed 

from the extraction of her teeth on July sth, 1986  

and that these extractions themselves were not done 

in substandard care. But: I have  no d o u b t  in my mind 

that she had just an unfortunate typical 

postoperative infection from routine axtractions that 

subsequently led to an extremely severe mnxilluEacia1 

infection that required hospitalization, 

So 1 feel the series of events; as you go down 

the records and follow the people seeing h e r  and the 

comments that it is a day-to-day series of events of 

h e r  leading into a more infected condition that 

ultimately led ta hospitalization in which 

sophisticated x-rays showed without a doubt she had a 

major m a x i l l o f a c i a l  abscess 

Would you agree with me that t h e  infection itself is 

not evidence of malpractice in and of itself? 

Oh, I agree with you, yes. 

And the fault that you find with Dr. Chepla is not 

t h a t  an infection developed in Mrs. Mabozny after the 

multiple extractions but rather t h e  €ailtire to treat 

t h e  infection once it became evident? 

Correct I 

And you have indicated in your letter here that. there 

MAGEJUE.1 REPORTING 
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was evidence to s u p p o r t  a need t o  t r e a t  that 

infection? 

C o r r a c t .  

What was t h e  f i r s t  bit of evidence t h a t  Dr. Chep la  

should have been aware of or was aware of t h a t  would 

have! caused him to taka Eome action or s h o u l d  have 

caused him to take some action? 

Mrs. Nabazny states in h e r  summary that she  called 

him on the l o t h ,  two days postop, complaining of 

sEtvQre p a i n  and stiffness i n  the jaw and temple and 

was t o l d  t h a t  this W A S  t o  be expected and called 

again on t h e  11th complaining of severe pain and 

stiffness and again told that t h i s  was norma l  and was 

not seen until h e r  prearranged postoperative visit 

f o r  t h e  15th, which was seven days pos top ,  and €our 

additional days after her  second day of complaint. 

I believe t h a t  she was describing the 

cardinal clinical sign for potantially s i g n i f i c a n t  

infection, postoperative infection, after routine 

oral s u r g e r y .  

Let me a s k  you t h i s .  The J u l y  10th c a l l  that she 

claims that she made t o  D r .  Chepla, s h e  talks about 

severe pain and stiffness in the jaw, is that right? 

U m - h u m .  

Is there anything significant about what she's 
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describing to D r .  Chepla to you? 

A Overwhelmingly. 

Q What is  significant and why? I'm just :  talking about 

the J u l y  10th tc ; lephone call at that p o i n t .  

A A s  you review these a r t i c l e s  that f have, the thing 

that y o u  will see in my mind that won't be hard f o r  

you aa a nonnmdical trained person to pick up wn, the 

one key sign and symptom you look for in something 

like t h i s  where t h e  potential was there the day of 

o r i g i n a l  surgery is trismus, stiffness. 

She! describes it -- well, s ~ v e r e  pain and 

stiffness. Again, if I extract t e e t h ,  12 or 15 or 

20, and 8he calls me on t h e  1 0 t h  and s a y s  she has 

severe p a i n  and stiffness, even if I don't. say 

anything then or don't assume anything then and she 

c a l l s  me again the next d a y ,  she is giving me every 

warning s h e  can that something bad is brewing because 

1 expect on simple extractions -- now, with h e r  case 

i f  she said stiffness and extreme pain just in the 

lower l e f t  with the wisdom tooth, I ' d  still want to 

see h e r ,  but I would think wisdom tooth, dry socket, 

what have  you. 

B u t  if she's saying t h e  o t h e r  side, which I 

assume s h e  would say r i g h t  s i d e ,  but if she's saying 

elsewhere or all over or anything that's just not 
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consistent with an impacted wisdom tooth, I believe 

that that immediately should call attontion to 

something other than something routine going on, 

because when you do simple extractions of ronta where 

she's had these for months and years and s h e  doosn't 

even have abscesses around them and her body is 

responding to these so well, from the extraction 

sites, s h e  should be feeling tremendously better in 

t w o ,  threa, four days. 

1 tell most people where I'm routinely 

extracting teet .h that you may be so re  €or a couple of 

days, but in three, f o u r ,  five you should be 

surprised haw goad you f e e l ,  

Q Do you find anything alarming about t h e  f a c t  that she  

had the severe pain on July 10th and Ilth? 1 

understand what you're saying about tha trismus, but 

I'm trying to talk about the pain now f o r  a minute. 

Is the pain that she was experiencing, could 

that be within norntnf limits given what was done to 

h e r  in terms of the surgery and the information that 

you have on her? 

A I think truly in this case it would be significant as 

to which side. If she says severe -- 
Q Does her statement say which side? 

A I don't know t h a t  s h e  does, and I'n: assuming that s h e  

MAGNUM R E P 0 R T I BIG 
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would have because everything indicates it was on the 

r i g h t  side, That's where the infection was and t h a t  

she never showed any r e a l  problems with t h e  wisdom 

t o o t h  socket, and $0 s-- but in h e r  case?, you would 

anticipate and you would react differently a s  to 

which s i d a  because of tha impaction on one s i d e  and 

n o t  on t h e  o t h e r ,  

If s h e  were to tell me, "Hey, it d o e s n ' t  hurt 

on t h e  side the impaction came o u t ,  it hurts more on 

t h e  other side," t h i s  pain, severe pain would be 

highly significant 8360, to me h i g h l y  BigniEicant. 

So that you would not expect her to have s e v e r e  pain 

on the right side of her face two or three days after 

t h e  surgery? 

No, no, I: would expect in most cases for them t o  

say, "Gee, t.hat feels a lot better. f 5 u r e  om glad 

t o  have those rotten teeth a u t , "  something to t h a t  

ef E e c t  

Wow long a period of time would you expect them to 

experience severe pain, though?  

A couple d a y s  without postoperative probleme, Those 

people who had no postoperative infection or 

problems, and some would, and that no one could treat 

a number of patients like her without getting the 

postopcrstive conditione he's g e t t i n g  i n ,  but more 
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t h a n  half of them wauld just say in two or three o r  

four days, " B O Y ,  does it feel great to have those 

out. " 

Lat XIE look at this statement for ~9 minute, i f  I 

could. 

Ua you ltnow that; thG J u l y  10th and l l t h  

telephone calls that you are referring to w e r e  not 

contained in Dr. Chepla's records? 

Well, I have the copies of his records and see they 

were not, but 1 think she did call Dr. Sangrick on 

one or t w o  uf those occasions, didn't she? I: believe 

she called him.  X forget when she first c a l l e d  him, 

but I. saw t h a t  they were n o t  cantained in his record. 

Of course, if Ctr. Chepfa didn't have that 

information, then you can't judge him to react to 

something he! didn't know about? 

MR. DeShNTIS: You're talking about 

t h e  i n f o r m a t i o n  on July T O t h ?  

NR.  MEADOR: I ' m  t a l k i n g  about t h e  

J u l y  10th and 31th telephone calls. 

Well, not. true in that it's the captain of the ship 

situation. 

Do you think that Dr. Chepla should have called her 

then on July 1 0 t h  or  llth? 

I think that Dr. Chepla h a s  -- his office has to have  

MAG HUM K E P ORT I NG 
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t h e  p o l i c y  of r e s p o n d i n g  t o  c a l l s  of t h i s  t y p e  and 

e v e n  i f  no one  t o l d  him s h e  c a l l e d ,  i t ' s  a f a i l u r e  of  

his office. 

Wave you considered the p o s s i b i l i t y  t h a t  Mxs. Nabozny 

didn't calf anyone, e i t h e r  h i s  office o r  Dr. Chepln 

and h a s  s a i d  t h i s  after t h e  f a c t ?  

I have  not considered t h a t  for t h i s  reason, and 1: 

feel i t  a v a r y  i m p o r t a n t  r e a s o n .  A s  f g5 through 

t h e s e  records, in f a c t ,  I: make t h e  comment somewhere 

i n  my n o t e s ,  thirs: p a t i e n t  gives a11 t h e  indicatians 

of a super p a t i e n t .  

She calla you when she'@ g o t  a problem, s h e  

t e l . 1 ~  you and if you s a y ,  "Well, d o n ' t  do a n y t h i n g , "  

s h e  l e t s  i t  go. She's n o t  Decond g u e s s i n g .  She's 

not -.- t h e  p r e v i o u s  cases 1 t a l k e d  t o  you about where 

I gave expert testimony h e r e ,  it's amazing how long 

Same of t h e s e  people w i l l  go b e i n g  a p e r f e c t  p a t i e n t  

t o  the d o c t o r  and a f t e r  t h r e e  o r  f o u r  months you 

wonder how l o n g  would t h e y  c o n t i n u e  under t h a t  care, 

t h a t  doctar's c a r e  when they're not really doing 

a n y t h i n g  

So from t h e  record I sense ei feeling t h a t  

s h e ' s  being a very good p a t i e n t ,  s o  I n e v e r  had t h e  

s l i g h t e s t  d o u b t  t h a t  she  called t h o s e  two d a y s .  

I n  y o u r  next p a r a g r a p h  of your May 22th, 1988 l e t t e r  
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you said that, "Or. G h ~ p l a ' s  records are extremely 

inadequata b u t  still capable of r e v e a l i n g  a litany of 

p o e t o p e r a t i v e  care omissions," and you go on to list 

four various omissions. 

What about  Dr. Chepla's racords are in your 

words extremcEAly i n n d @ g u a t o ?  

A Well, Ximee have -- YOU know, 1 practiced 22 y e a r s ,  

and t i m e s  have  changed a great deal because of the 

malpractice crisis and e v e r y t h i n g ,  and o u r  s o c i e t y ,  

as many others, have s t a r t e d  with t h e  risk management 

programs and so forth. 

Quite frankly, I would hazard to guess that 

at least 80 percent of all -- of most medical and 

d e n t a l  records are  "inadequate," Now t h a t  I've taken 

some risk management courses and now t h a t  I: -- when I 
opened my own practise, I s t a r t e d  making far b e t t e r  

roeards than I d i d  before of actually putting dawn 

things that happen and t h i n g s  t h a t  were s a i d  and 

things that might be anticipated. 

Q Anticipating litigation? 

A No, no, of potential infection. Like I probably 

would have p u t  a note on her if I didn't s t a r t  

antibiotics, the need for future antibiotics may 

arise or something to that effect, and so I have kept 

records similar to Dr. C h e p l a  many times over many 
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ysars, and I just believe in thia day and tine they 

are totally inadequate. 

He does not describe in any detail what he 

really did or what his thought processes ox- what he 

c o n s i d e r e d ,  and unfortunately, I've done the same 

thing. And he doesn't say that he talked to her 

about poe;sibla  antibiotics, that i t  might bc a 

consideration, and then there's no note anywhere that 

she did or did not calf. 

So 1 would have to assume she d i d ,  and so 

these are things where,  unfortunately, this is a very  

typical record which is -- they are typically 
inadequate. 

You're n o t  prepared to say that they're substandard 

just because of the record keeping i t s e l f -?  

Oh, I think a8 a record keeping, t h i s  is substandard. 

Is that malpractice? 

In my mind, yes .  Y e s ,  without a doubt from the cases 

t h a t  I ' v e  reviewed and from the positions I've had on 

m e d i c a l  staffs, Z personally believe that a 

substandard record is malpractice, 

Well, I'm talking about Dr. Chepla's records. 

Yes I 

Y u u  believe that his -- 
I: p e r s o n a l l y  believe, yes. 
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That his record keeping in this case? in and of itself 

i s  malpractice? 

X: do an& for this reason, When you go back and 

review aubstandard care and review thea records, 9 

think in almosr all the cases you will find where a 

qual.ified expert will give you an  opinion this 

patient received substandard care, you w i l l  also find 

a substandard record. 

And to carry that further, I think it is an 

absolute requirement of someone assuming significant 

responsibilities in the care of somaone, it's 

absolutoly required to document not only what they 

d i d  but somm of the more important considerations 

they made, and I rarely did it in the bulk of my 

practice, but in this day and age I think it's an 

absolute; requirement because I think in her case the 

potential consideration f o r  future antibiotics was an 

absolute requirement. 

The consideration that she may need them was 

a b s o l u t e  and i n  the treatment she received on J u l y  

t h e  8th and that she might be one of these people 

that's going to need postop antibiotics down the road 

from what he saw when he took her teeth out. 

D i d  S hear  you say that approximately 80  percent of 

records nowadays are extremely inadequate? 

MAGNUM REPORTING 
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Well, I s a i d  t h a t  f o r  this reason -- 
MR. DeSANTIS: objection. I d o n ' t  

know if  he said extremely or nat, 1 think he 

said inadequate. 

What I base this an is L have been chairman of the 

d e n t a l  department for t w o  two-year periods. I have 

been deeply involved in nmadical malpractice hero and 

plus on the medical staff receiving lit@rature like 

from in Wisconsin they have the WISPRQ, the PRO 

agencies t h a t  I have to review for Medicare and so 

forth, and I'vft seen comments like i n  staff 

newsletters, tho medical records people arslking for 

medical s t a f f  members t o  come down and help them 

review records for Medicare treatment and with the 

comments you need to come see the records. You won't 

believe them. 

I have spent: a lot: of time in medical records 

talking t o  people about substandard care. I truly 

believe the bulk of hospital r e c o r d s ,  patient records 

and of dental records would fail any  close s c r u t i n y  

of what s h o u l d  be adequate today. We don't keep good 

records, anybody, and when you f a l l  into something 

like this is where it suddenly becomes so important 

because in the bulk of the c ~ s e s ,  nobody ever has  to 

go back and Look at them. So there's RQ problem, who 
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C€t188. 

5) But Dr. Chepla may want  better records also';.' 

a Yes. 

6, And I ' m  not commenting on that one way or the other, 

but if I understand what you're saying, you're saying 

that the bulls of t h @  records nowadays if they were 

s c r u t i n i z e d  would fail the scrutiny? 

A Yes, I believe that, 

Q And what I'm trying to find out from YOU is why you 

would say  that if Dr. Chepia's records fa13 w i t h i n  

the majority or the bulk of the record keeping 

nowadays, why you consider t h a t  to be malpractice 

when malpractice i r J  by definition fafling to meet the 

standard of care, and  I believe that the standard of 

care Ps defined by what t h e  custom and practice is, 

A Wall, I -- 
MR. DeSANTIS: Objection, Wait B 

minute, wait A minute, 

THE WZTNESS: A11 right. 

MR, DeSANTIS: I'm n o t  g o i n g  to let 

him answer that question because, f i r s t  of 

all, 1 think i t  c a l l s  for ~ 3 .  legal o p i n i o n  

about what malpractice is, and second of all, 

I'm not sure I understand it because I t  was 

s o  complex. 
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Zr Well, I can -- 
THE WITNESS: You don't want me to? 

1 can answer it. 

MR. MEADOR: Wcll, if he 

u n d e r s t a n d s  the question, Frank -- 
R I think it's very simple, wnd T can see  why ha 

doesn't w a n t  me t~ answer it, and I t h i n k  this will 

help you ez great deal. Tha record is a specific part 

of the traatment. The record is as much a part of 

the treatment as putting the needle in her arm to p u t  

her to s l e e p ,  if that's what he used, in putting the 

local aneerthetic needle under the gum to inject and 

putting t h e  forceps up to remove the teeth. 

The record is a specific part of the 

treatment and if you've g o t  a record that is 

substandard, you've got substandard care because he 

cannot from this record go back and specifically 

identify whether ha talked to her about potential 

antibiotics, whether it ever crossed his mind whether 

she called or sha didn't. All those  are pertinent 

factors stemming to my unequivocal opinion t h a t  he 

rendered substandard care in this, and  so the record 

is part of the treatment-,, and this is what people 

fail to understand. It is FIB much as cutting the 

skin. 
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If you can't write down and document what you 

did, then you haven't done it properly because 

i t ' s  -- you can't separate the two. You've  got to 

dictate an operative report. You've got to diccate a 

discharge summary. When you're in t h e  hospital 

you've got to say what you did, and that's as 

important in t h e  cases  I've dealt w i t h  that S: talked 

a b o u t  before, The doctors would put t h e  patients 

have complications and in a discharge summary would 

say no complications, no consultations, and they were 

d e a l i n g  with something they didn't know what they 

wBre dealing with. 

Tha record  was as substandard as any part of 

t h e  care t h e y  gave. 

L e t  ma a s k  you this. What should Dr. Chep la  have 

dano thes i  to bring his records up to the standard of 

care  in this case? What should his record contain, 

in o t h e r  words, to bring it up to your standards of 

care? 

Well,  now, the only way I can answer on this case is 

that, quite frankly, I believe that Dr. C h e p l a  gave 

substandard care -- I'm assuming she  called, and i f  

he didn't know, he should have on t h o s e  t w o  dates. 

I believe he gave substandard care on 

July 10, questionable care on July 10, t h e  first 
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Yuly llth, the eacond day s h e  called, and he did 

nothing. On July 15th when he took  the sutures  out 

after seven  days, they gst to be mora o f  B harm t h a n  

i;l help. Sutures, that i s  the  only pof i i t ive  thing 

that 1 find, and from h i s  record and his actions, X 

don't find he d i d  anything right, and 3 find great 

gaps in even his surgical judgment in that 1 don't 

see he's thinking t h e  right thing a t  the right time 

at any pcint in this is what concerns me. 

So what I'm getting at is I don't know from 

this one case, and I'm not trying to c l a s s i f y  h;Pm 8s 

a totally inadequate surgeon, T'm talking about one 

case, the care that he gave this lady in this one  

instance. From this f don't know if he knew enough 

on J u l y  5th to make an adequate record -- T mean G'th, 

duly 8 t h ,  because I don't see  that h e ' s  even thinking 

about  passibla i n f e c t i o n  on the l o t h ,  l l t h ,  the 15th, 

t h e  18th, and what r e a l l y  brings that home is when 

she comes in on the 15th and he's got a couple little 

lines here. 

Now, this in the third time, as far as X 

know, to his o f f i c e  she is giving b i g  red f l a g s  and 

b i g  horns and big noisemakers I got problems going, 

significant problems, and he's got two little lines 
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in h e r e ,  and he s3ays something about possible TMJ 

ynin. 

What happened on July 15th, 19867 

H e  took standard porjrtop care of something, warm 

sornoth ing ,  right -- he talks about r i g h t  swelling, 

and  t h e n  he s a y s ,  "'Possible TMJ pain." You can 

hardly read  i t .  Tkors is I t h i n k  in his 

depssition -- 
MR. DcSANTIS; Let me interject 

something. You ware referring to 

Or. Chepla's notes? 

THE WITNESS: Office record, yes, 

for 7-15-86. 

And in the n o t e s  I had of his deposition, here it is, 

7-15 if we go back to about Page 94 in his 

deposition, I'm not suggesting -- wait a minute. 

"What w a s  the next communication t h a t  your 

off i ce  had?" 

"TO my knowledge, it was her next 

appointment, July 15, '86. That's right, she came 

back. She was instructed to come back. That was a 

planned follow-up visit." 

I'm j u s t  reading what he s a y s ,  and -- 
MR. UeSAMT'IS: L e t  ma interject, 

Doctor. Why don't you r ead  it to yourself 
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and see  if it refreshes your recollection and 

than answer his question. 

Here it is, talking about what he wrote down. SR 

maana suture  removing. The stitches w e r e  t a k e n  o u t .  

Then it s a y s ,  "N well." That means healing well. 

Okay, that's shorthand. 

Then it ~ a y a  CO. That means complaining of 

and t h e n  pain right ear. Okay. "Then I wrote down 

possible or PO5, which moans possible TMJ pBin . "  And 

whet is TMJ pain? Temporomandibular joint g a i n .  

So that's what Dr, Chepla found on July 15th 

a c c o r d i n g  ta h i s  notes? 

That's what his records s t a t e s  he found, 

What, if anything, d i d  Ur, Chepla do or not do on 

July 1 5 t h  that constitutes malpractice? 

fn my opinion, other than removing the sutures, he 

did  absolutely nothing else r i g h t .  Ha did everything 

wrong in that he d i d  nothing plus -- 
Well, let me ask  you this. 

-- he indicates -- 
MR. DeSANTIS; Let him finish, Why 

don't you let him finish his answer. 

What should he have done? 

Plus  he indicates he's looking -- well, it's so hard 
to explain. He says in shorthand, "HealJng well," 

MAGNUM REPORTING 



? 

1 

L 

t 

I 

f 

$ 

IC 

11 

1; 

I C  

1L  

1 5  

1E 

17 

I &  

1s 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

which is totally u n t r u e  from -- no, wait a minute. 

And t h e n  he s a y ~ ,  "Chief complaint of right: Bar 

pain," and he says ,  "Possible TMJ p a i n . "  

Now, unlsss she comes in and says,  "I have 

had a blow to my jaw, my husband h i t  m e ,  3 had an  

auto a c c i d e n t ,  I fell dawn the stairs," which she 

doesn't, from what  he did the week before and f o r  he r  

to have swelling, for him to start to inject into 

this possible scenarios for her pain and so f o r t h ,  

possible TMJ pain is -- it scares me. 
X see no rationale f o r  i t ,  So what 1 mean i s  

she's coming in w i t h  clinical signs that he do@sn't 

describe taal.1, signs and symptoms, 

What arcs the c l i n i c a l  signs t h a t  he didn't d e s c r i b e  

well? 

She's been calling since the 20th. 

I'm n o t  talking about the telephone c a l . l s ,  D Q C ~ O ~ ,  

because that is something -- 
Yes, but it all leads up. I ' m  s o r r y .  

That is something you're assuming because of the 

written summary that Mrs. Nabozny gave you, and that 

may very well be her testimony. I b e l i e v e  it was. 

Yes * 

But my question to you is going by Dr. Chepla's 

records and what he saw on July 15th. According to 
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h i s  notes, what did hst do wrong? 

All right. 

MR. DaSAMTIS: Wait a minute?. I ' m  

go ing  to object. You want him to get i n t o  

Dr. Chepla's head? I mean I don't understand 

your question. What he's telling you io what 

he -- 
MR, MEADUP,: Let me rephrase i t  

then. 

t3R. B e S A N T I S :  -- opines t h i s  

doctor did wrong based on all the facts he 

h a s  before him. 

Are you asking him to opine on what 

this doctor did wrong based on limited facts? 

X don't know if that's possible. 

MR. MEADOR: I ' m  asking the Doctor 

to answer my question based upon t h e  recorda 

that we have and Ur. Chepla's office records 

and what h i s  notes are and what it i s  t h a t  h e  

did n o t  da that he should have done. 

All right. I think I've answered. 

And why? 

I t h i n k  I cs?n answer you and answer you fairly well. 

Excluding removing sutures, which was scheduled the 

day of s u r g e r y  and which i s  typical at least by seven  
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days after surgery, excluding that, he did in my 

estimation from the factors 1 had to go by, her 

summary and h i s  -- 
I'm asking you not to go by har summary. 

Okay. Even with that -- 
Assurrte that Pr, Chepla never got t h o s e  two calls on 

July 10th and 11th and just assume what you have i n  

Eront of you with respect to Dr. Chepla's notes  and 

focusing in on July 15th. 

MR. DeSANTIS: Let me interject. 

L e t  me, object and inject. Are  you asking -- 
does this hypothetical include what happened 

afterwards too? 

That's what I was asking, Doas that i n c l u d e  

subsequent events? 

N o .  

I can't take one? day, X can't just by one day. 

You have to go by what Dr. Chepla  did and was t o l d  a t  

the time it occurred, It's easy to judge in 

1 e t r 0 s pe c t . 
Wait a minute. Let ma t e l l  you why this is so 

important. As you go further i n  that on the 18th 

when she calls Sangrick and Sangrick caLfs Chepla and 

so forth, we know later on that she ha3 to be h a v i n g  

trismus and stiffness before the 15th. 
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so X can't assume from his note t h a t  she 

doesn't have any stiffnasa and that she doesn't CONIE 

in -- she s a y s ,  'IT c o u l d  hardly open my mouth f o r  h5.m 

to get the sutures out:," and I believe that although 

ha d i d n ' t  w r i t e  it down for t h a t  day, he was looking 

at a patient that had  a significant clinical trismus. 

S o ,  you know, 1. can't separate that from how 

X give you an opinion b e c a u s e  there are too m m y  

factors a f t e r  to show that had to be t h e r e ,  the 

day -- 7-15, Even though he  didn't write it down, 

she's got to come i n  with a stiff j a w l  she c a n ' t  opan 

very wide .  

Q Just for the record ,  her first c a l l  to Dr. Sangrick 

was @he day a f t e r ,  an the 16th. 

A Yes,  okay. 

Q So 1 don't know if you're basing it upsn same call 

t h a t  she  made to Dr, Sangrick before the 15th. 

That's erroneous information b e c a u s e  X don't b e l i e v e  

the records i n d i c a t e  t h a t .  

So assuming now that her first c a l l  to 

Dr. Sangrick was on the 16th of July and assuming 

only tRe f a c t s  that you have in Dr. Chepla's office 

records for July 1 5 t h  of 1986, what -- 
MR, DeSANTXS: Wait B minute nuw, 

and the testimony that he had a t  t h a t  
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deposition explaining what he BBW at that 

office visit. 

And Ur. Chepla'c testimony that's in his deposition 

regarding what he saw on J u l y  15th, 1986, what did 

Dr. Chepla do or not do that you believe shou ld  havc 

bean dona? 

MR. DeSANTIS: And wait B minute 

now. Just 60  I understand your hypothetical, 

you want him to assume that sha did not call 

on the 20th and the llth? 

MR. MEADOR: That's correct. 

MK. DeSANTYS: You understand the 

hypothetical you're g i v e n ?  

THE WITNESS: Sure .  

Fram what I can surmise here!, you know, from later 

on -- 
Doctor, YOU know, t h e  problem that we're having 

here -- I'm running out of time here, and even though 
I'm n o t  t r y i n g  to n o t  let you explain yourself, 1 

need to know specific a n s w ~ r s  to specific questions. 

Yes e 

Not assuming any additional information, and I want 

you to only go by what Dr, Chepla says that he was 

told at that time, not R S E ; U ~ B  -- 
Okay.  
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-- subsaquant events  and not judge him in retrospect 

and also n o t  inc1udQ telephone c a l l s  t h a t  may or  may 

riot have baen made befare the l S t h ,  

Okay. 

And i f  you could, c o u l d  you t e l l  me what i t  was that 

Dr. Chepla  s h o u l d  have done on July 15th of 1986 

based only upon what he says he was told a t  his 

deposition and h i s  records for that day? 

Okay. I t h i n k  I can do that for this reason -- 
You don't have to g i v e  me the reason why you c a n  do 

i t .  Just g i v e  m e  t h e  answer. 

MR. DeSANTIS: And I'm going t o  a s k  

you to take a look at the deposition 

transcript so that you know what he says t h a t  

he saw or  d i d  on July 15th. 

I'll rev iew what h e  says. "Suture removal, ti w e l l ,  

means healing w e l l ,  complaining of pain right ear, 

possible TMJ p a i n ,  'I 

A l l  r i g h t .  H e  says healing well. 

summation. 

R i g h t .  

Shs says pain in right e a r ,  

Right. 

That ain't h e a l i n g  well. That ie; a total 

contradiction, you know, one to the  other. 
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Do you know what he means when he says healing w e l l ?  

He s a y s ,  and I'm quotkng, "Then i t  says H well. That 

means healing well " okay, 

Right. Do you know what is h e a l i n g  well'? 

T h a t ' s  Ghorthand. Sure, because? X ' v e  written it down 

thousands of times. X t  means clinically things look 

as yoti would anticipate them to l o o k  in this ease 

seven days postop when he takes the sutures out. 

There is nothing contra t a  what you expect, 

yet he says his term is healing well, and then the 

very next thing complaining of pain r i g h t  ear. 

That's n o t  healing well. 

Now, what I'm trying to g e t  at and I think 

what you want to know, n;y feeling is on the 15th he 

does absolutely nothing -- 
L e t  me ask you this. 

N O W,  wait a minute. -- specific. H i s  actions are 

ze ro .  He does nothing. He doesn't write a 

prescription. He doesn't tell her to come back. He 

didn't give her ansther appointment to see her the 

next day. 

He does nothing from his record and h i s  

opinion, his s u r g i c a l  logic is totally faulty in that 

his summation i s  she's healing well. 

Right. 
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And her summation is, " I ' v e  got a right ear that's 

hurting. '' 

So you think it's inconsistent tor him to putting 

down healing well and at the same tima p u t  down that 

she's complaining of e a r  pain? 

Right, and t h e n  wait a minute, You've got to go 

little further than t h a t .  When s h e  says right ear 

pain and then he says he suspects possible T M J  p a i n  

when there's nothing anywhere in any o f  this, 

wherever you go, that she  would have! any reason to 

have TMJ pain unless something from the extractions 

caused it. 

Now, there arcs a couple of ways you could 

have TMJ p a i n .  You can have infaction going  there or 

when he puts her to sleep and opens her mouth kind of 

wide and fast some people wuuld, b u t  the pain if she 

gives no history of being hit or trauma anywhere, 

he's got to wander why would it be TMJ, 

This is something completely new, foreign to 

what we should s u s p e c t  should be anything connected 

with what WB did. It's got to be foreign ta this. 

So  re you saying that t h e  TMJ p a i n  that might result 

from a person's mouth being opened wide during t h e  

procedure would not last a week? 

Well, or even if it did, you know, he's g o t  to have 
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some rationals to writo down possible TMJ pain. X 

find nothing anywhere that aivas him t h i s  rationale. 

Do you know how *- 

When you take these two lines, X have t u  assume from 

these two  lines he doesn't have any idea what's going 

on, and t h a t ' s  what s c a r e s  me. His surgical judgment 

here from indicating what he writas down h e r e  

approaches zero. (Indicating) 

Rased upon what you have in front of YOU --- 
With the t w o  lines here. 

-- regarding the two lines from D r .  Chapla's notes 

f o r  July  I5th of ' 8 6 ,  what in your o p i n i o n  should 

Dr. Chepla have done? 

Sevaral  things an  t h a t  day ,  antibiotics quick, 

Antibiotics, what kind of antibiotic? 

WsX1, she's allergic to penicillin, and he a few days 

l a t e r  started h e r  on Keflex, which probably would 

have been t h e  one to start t h r e B  days sooner, and the 

h e a t .  

What else? And what? 

And he's got to see h e r  the next day.  

So he should have seen her the next day, and  she 

should have been prescribed freflex or some other 

antibiotic? 

And he shoufd have s t a r t e d  to find out why this pain, 
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where is it. 

How does he do that? 

Clinically h a ' s  gat to examine her. 

What kind of examination? 

Well, he's got to see how wide she c a n  apsn her 

mouth. S e e ,  I can't totally divorce from her calling 

twice. What I ' m  getting at, though, I ' m  positive in 

my mind on the 15th when he's writing t h e  note she's 

got trismus, and I'm positive h e  didn't put trismus 

in the note, and that blows his note to smithereens. 

What's trismus? 

Triamus -- 
What's your definition of trismus? I can read the 

a r t i c l e s  later on ,  

Well, they had just one l i t t l e  thing that 1. wanted to 

read ta you here in the first article, but tightness 

of the muscle, inability to open t h e  jaw freely, 

Okay. And you don't know how much she cou ld  opan her 

jaw on J u l y  15th of '86, do you? You don't know how 

f a r  she  could  open her mouth on July 15th of 1986? 

A l l  the indications are from different sources 

significantly limited. 

All the indications? The o n l y  indication i s  h e r  

summary of her calls, isn't that right? 1 mean what 

other indication do you have? 
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Well, by the time she finally got in the hospital she 

had extreme stiffnems and so -- 
That's a b o u t  & week or  so  later, isn't it, Doctor? 

She gets in the hospital -- 
On t h e  22nd of July? 

22nd. 

The 15th is a week before that? 

Yes, that's really bad. 

What besideB her summary that you h a w  read -- 
Well, and the f a c t  that all t h e  people t h a t  have seen 

her, which were quite a few by the time she got in 

the hospital, no one had any doubt t h a t  she had been 

having trismus and where the infection was finally 

found . 
And ~ e e ,  here's what you're missing and 

here's where f: think you're -- if you look at where 
this infection is and what goes on in there and where 

the muscles are ,  you start to understand t h a t  with 

pus there, which you can't see it outside much, it is 

right between the muscle: -- t w o  of the major muscjeea 

where you can open the jaw and that the trismus is 

a l l  part of it. She's not going to get an infection 

there without having trismus. You can't have it 

without having trismus. 

So clinically from the other n o t e s  and 
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e v e r y t h i n g ,  t h e r e  is no doubt i n  my mind she's g o t  

t r i s m u s  on the 1 5 t h ,  and  she's s t a r t i n g  to g e t  i t  on 

t h e  1 0 t h  and l l t h ,  whe ther  she c a l l e d  o r  n o t  b e c a u s e  

o f  whera t h e y  found -- whan they f i n a l l y  got the MRI 

and ahowed i t  and when t h e y  f i n a l l y  t r ea ted  her f o r  

it, she's got to have trismus. 

Q So because of where t h e y  found  her  i n f e c t i o n ,  t h e  

abscess on 7-15, r i g h t  -- 
A SBC?,  you're t r y i n g  t o  L i m i t  m e  t o  7-15 o n l y ,  and I ' m  

t r y i n g  to say from t h e  other t h i n g s  t h a t  a r e  i n  here, 

e v e r y t h i n g  is going t o  t3how you t h a t .  Hie note i s  so  

faulty, there fs so much left out of h i s  note. T h a t  

h a s  t o  be t h e r e .  Me's m i s s i n g  so many things on t h e  

1 5 t h .  It is so sad. 

Q And I'm t r y i n g  t o  u n d e r s t a n d  what a r e  your o t h e r  

reasons, n o t  c o n f i n i n g  you t o  July 15th. T know 

you're r e l y i n g  on the phone cetPls t h a t  s h e  s a i d  s h e  

made on J u l y  1 0 t h  and 11th. I know now that you're 

r e l y i n g  on t h e  f a c t  of where t h e  abscess was found, 

t h a t  she would have had t o  have had trismus a week 

before t h a t ,  is t h a t  r i g h t ?  

A Yes. 

Q How l o n g  bafcre when t h e y  found  t h e  abscess are you 

able to go back i n  t ime and s a y  s h e  had t r i s m u s ?  

MR. DeSAMTIS: L e t  m e  o b j e c t .  N o w ,  
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are you not letting him use t h e  phone ca l l s ;  

to Sangrick? You asked him not to consider 

those earlier. 

MR, MEADQR: Right. And your 

understanding, Frank, may not be t h e  same -- 
THE WITNESS: This is so 

r u n- a f- t h e- m i l l  for me. 

MR. DeSANTIS: Let me j u s t  tell 

you, Doctor ,  when Gene and I are talking 

about objections, you've got to w a i t  until we 

resolve it. 

THE WITNESS: I'm sorry, 

MR. DeSANTIS: If just want to make 

sura the record is clear, I: don't care if I 

understand or he understands. It's got  to be 

clear on the record what you're asking  him, 

what f a c t s  you're assuming to include in his 

opinions. 

Q Using all the facts you know now, why do you believe 

that on July 15th of 1986 Mrs. Nabozny had trismus? 

A When you go through these articles and have -- you 
know, some appreciation of the anatomy of where 

things are cooking in her anatomy, you will see that, 

number one, the thing that dings a chime on this 

particular thing is trismus because it's right up 
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bctwrsen two major muscles and you get an abscess 

there, and the first thing that's going to give you 

any indication being a treating su rgaon  i s  trismus. 

A patient's going t o  walk in and say ,  " H i ,  

I'm tired, T can't open wide ,  what's wrong," and  you 

say ,  " X  don't know," and you can't see t h e  swalling, 

and that's why I go back to the 8th. If I don't 

start her on antibiotics, I know the least sign I g e t  

from her, I get her on antibiotics then. 

Because iE somebody comes in to me with 

significant trismus postop and f can't tell for 5ure 

where it is and can't g a t  at it, it scares the devil 

out of me because if you dan't get them on the right 

antibiotics, t h e y  can start deteriorating quick and 

this is the prGb1em. 

I think I understand what you're saying. Because o f  

the location of the abscess, it would have affected 

those muscles? 

Y e s .  Trismus is your primary key. Trismus is -- 
that's where it is, baby. 

Can the infection not be severe enough to actually 

cause the trismus? Can St be in that location but 

n o t  bs l a r g e  enough or savere enough at t h a t  point to 

actually cause trismus? 

MR. DeSANTIS: As a €  July 15th or 
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at any time? 

Well, h e r e ' s  what I think is going on. 

MR. DeSANTfS: %sit a minute. 

him -- 3 mean X don't understand t h e  

quesrion, Gene, 

95 

L e t  

I'm net sure! t h a t  you're asking him 

in any  case  can infection be in a particular 

place and not causa trismus or in this 

particular case w i t h  MS. Nabozny on J u l y  15th 

could there have been an infection t h a t  

could not have caused trismus. 

X'm asking with respect to trismus in Mrs, Nabozny, 

c o u l d  there have been an infection but it could n o t  

have caused trismus on July 15th, 19136, even assuming 

its final location? 

No, I don't believe so. 

Can t h e  infection move? Ira other words, on July 15th 

of 1986 could t h e  infection n a t  have been in t h e  

location whera it W B S  eventually found? 

The infection can spread but n o t  move in total. I t  

won't move from s t a r t i n g  here and all sf i t  going 

here,  but it w i l l  s t a r t  here and spread .  

(Indicating1 

Well, how do you know that the infection didn't start 

somewhere else and then spread to where it was 
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eventually found? 

A Well, number one, from the x- ray ,  and the anatomy 

x-ray 2 haven't seen, but I can show you a picture of 

it from a report that kind of clears it up for you, 

from where they know it was and have proof to where 

it w a s  and everything. 

It had to s t a r t  there where it truly became 

an infection that had to be treated and everything, 

because that's where t h e  bulk of it was found and 

where it remained. When they finally two weeks later 

get her in the hospital and g e t  t h e  x-ray and start 

giving her antibiotics, the hulk af t h e  infection a r a  

in this f o s s a ,  pterygopalatine fossa. (Indicating) 

Q T h a t  happens to be w nice a r e a .  Is it a cavity a r e a ?  

R Well,  what it is is when you run your finger up i n  

here  behind the l a s t  tooth in the jaw and right up 

the base of the skull and YOU got nerves and major  

v ~ s s e L ~ d ,  artery and veins and everything and than 

you've got muscles coming,  you've g o t  a muscle coming 

from in here to the head of the condyle and you've 

got a muscle coming down the two  pterygoids, so 

you're in smaller -- (Indicating) 

MR. DeSAfL'TIS: Let me int.errupt, 

Doctor. The record is n o t  going to 

demcnstrate that he's been referring to a 
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skull., and I don't knaw how you want to 

handle that. 

MR. MEXDOR: Doesn't mattor to me. 

No, I can tell you faow to handle it. One of the 

articles I've got goes over t h e  anatomy of t h e  

spacas. SO what I'm trying co do while you ask me 

questions is g ive  you a better idea of what we're 

dealing w i t h .  

So you're dealing w i t h  an area about this big 

that part of its boundaries are muscles, are these 

two muscles that affect t h e  movement of t h e  jaw, and 

once you get an abscess in t h a t  area, t h e i r  f u n c t i o n  

is going to be impaired, and that is trismus. 

(Indicating) 

And the a rea  you've indicated for the record is fibout 

t h e  size of Q h a l f  dollar? 

Yes. 

Is t h a t  a space? 

It's B space. 

That's where the abscess was found w i t h  Mrs. Nabozny? 

Yes,  and I t h i n k  this will help you a lot, This is 

an MRT of a localization a f  a maxillofacial 

infection, and you see this big space, this is all 

pus. T h i s  is where -- t h i s  side you don't s e e  it. 

This patient is infected like her in this a r e a ,  and 
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a l l  you'll sea i a  a pus. Sa the trismus is an 

auromatic clinical -- fIndicating) 

Automatic clinical finding after you g e t  -- 
-- first clue. 
A f t e r  you get to t h e  point where t h e  infection is in 

t h o  fGssB, in tho space area, then you're g o i n g  to 

find the trismus? 

Yes * 

Do you concede t h a t  an infection can s t a r t  somewhere 

e i s e  and then spread  into the fossa area and that you 

w i l l .  not have the trismus until it actually reaches 

the fossa, which t h e n  would affect the m a c l e s ?  

Well -- 
Can you answer that yes or no? 

No, in that when does an infection become an 

infection? I n  other words, when hs took the teeth 

out and you g o t  the germs migrating back in the space 

behind the end of the jaw,  upper jawbane and up on 

the edge of the space j u s t  in the front p a r t  of the 

space, this b a c t e r i a  cooks f o r  a few days  and 5t23rts 

to get bigger and bigger, and Sooner or later, if it 

continues to grow, a f f e c t s  the muscles enough to 

where your first sign in this area is trismus. 

O k a y .  

Alteration of function of muscle. 
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MR. DeSANTIS:  Let me just 

interrupt, Gene. Just for t h e  sake of t h e  

record, t h e  MRI t h e  Doctor was referring to 

earlier in his testimony came from a Journal 

of O r a l  and Maxillofacial Surgery, Volume 45, 

Page 549. iCIa was referring to t h e  upper 

right-hand image. 

THE WITNESS; Yes. 

I'm going to g i v e  you all these, 

Good e 

So I h a t e  to -- I'm not trying to confuse you so much 

as T'm trying to hopefully make you better understand 

the area tha t .  you're dealing with. 

A t  t h i s  point in time I'm going to have to go with 

what I feel is most important, and if we could, &I11 

t r y  to X R O V ~  along a& fast as possible given  the time 

constraints. 

Item D an Page 2 of your t h y  12th, 1988 

report t a l k s  abou t  failure to refor Mrs. Nabozny to a 

qualified source for treatment o f  her infection. 

When do you believe that 5r. Chepla shou ld  have 

referred her to another qualified individual? 

When he felt h e r  postoperative complications were 

beyond his capabilities, 

Vhen was that? When should he have done that? 
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W e l l ,  the 15th he did nothing, The 18th he finally 

started her on antibiotics, and then 4 don't think he 

saw her again after that other thail to talk to h e r  on 

the phone, 

She should have been under  the care of 

someone w h o ' s  going to actively t r e a t  her symptoms, 

which  we, now know are etched in stone to be a 

pterygopalatine abscess, Sha should have been having 

active treatment minimum by tha 15th, would have been 

best by the 11th if s h e  made the phone c a l l s  Gut 

minimum by the 15th. 

So i t  was malpractice f o r  Lw. Chepla not to have 

referred her  to another specialist on July 15th of 

3.9863 

To treat her or refer her. He d i d  neither. H e  

didn't give her  any active treatment. 

t r ea tmen t  an the 15th, EO i t  was. 

What was it a b o u t  the 15th that should have caused 

him to refer her to another specialist? 

Well, a g a i n  1 s a i d  treat or refer. 

Right. 

So what was it about the 15th was primarily t h e  

trismus and the symptoms of a significant, 

potentially significant maxillofacial infection which 

demands treatment quick then, now. 

He gave her no 
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Well, your opinion as  to t h a t  hs s h o u l d  have referred 

h e r ,  e i t h e r  treated her o r  r e f e r r e d  her to another 

s p e c i a l i s t  on the" 1 3 t h  of Yuly is based upon your 

b e l i e f  t h a t  she was h a v i n g  t r i smus  on t h a t  day? 

Yes. 

Was s h e  h a v i n g  trismus before the 1 5 t h  of July? 

P b e l i e v e  t h a t  s h e  d e f i n i t e l y  d i d  call him on  t h e  

1 0 t h  and l l t h ,  and I b e l i e v e  trismus was beginning 

j u s t  a few days pastop. 

A few days gostop would have  made it -- 
From t h e  8th t o  t h e  1 0 t h .  

50 you believe she was experiencing trismus on 

J u l y  l o t h ?  

Yes. I think early signs of trismus, yes, and X 

believe t h e  l l t h ,  and t h i s  i G  why. 

And c e r t a i n l y  by the l t j t h ?  

And this is why -- 
Xs t h a t  true? 

I think by t h e  1 5 t h ,  yes, By t h e  15th. 

So h e  should have referred her by t h e  1 5 t h  or treated 

her  -- 
I f  h e  d i d n ' t  want to treat her. 

-- an t h e  1 5 t h ?  Did he have a n  obligation t o  refer 

her any earlier than the 1 5 t h  o r  have another 

s p e c i a l i s t  treat h e r ?  

HAGNUM REPORTING 
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He didn't s e e  her. I think he haa an obligation to 

see her 5omstime first, and he didn't see h e r  until 

t h e  15th. 

When do you think that he should have seen he r  first? 

10th would have been b e s t ,  11th without a doubt, 

assuming she made the phone c a l l s ,  and 1 EISSUXI~O she 

did e 

What was required of him, though, pursuant to the 

standard of care? 

In my mind to at l e a s t  talk t o  her on the 10th and 

tell her that if she's no batter t h e  next day, he has 

to see  hor and sue her on the! 11th and institute -- 
begin antibiotics on the 11th. 

The loth, you know, depending on what's going 

on t h a t  day and everything, but  he's got to see h e r  

by the next day. Without a d o u b t ,  he's go t  to know 

she called on IQtA,. and he'6 got to see her on the 

11th and from two days, baing the second day postop 

and t h e  third day postop, and getting certainly DO 

better, probably worsa. She was; getting no better, 

She had to be the same or worse. Start treatment 

then unless h e  didn't want to continue responsibility 

and then tu get her in the hands of somebody, P 

qualified source. 

If he had decided to treat her on rhe 10th or llth, 
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what would the treatment have been? 

What ha finally did on the 15th, to at least begin 

with Kaflex, nt least begin with Keflez: at that time, 

How. did you see h i s  notes regarding t h e  18th of 

July? 

Y a s ,  and the deposition, al l .  right, -- I've got 
Page 99 and L O O  in his depasitian. By t h e  way, he 

was asked in the deposition, "How long  would normal 

postoperativa swelling usually occur,'' and he s a i d  u p  

to two weeks and maybe a little longer. That boggles 

my mind. 

What i s  your opinion 8s to t h e  normal range o f  

s we 1 3. i n g ? 

For what he did? 

Yes a 

Three to five days at t h e  most or you've  got 

problems, Ha says h e r s ,  "There's no indication that 

there was any swelling on the 15th or abnormal 

s w e l l i n g . "  Swelling 9 can agree with. T r i s m u s  1 

don't. N o w ,  getting back to the 18th -- 
Let m e  just -- 
Here it is. That's when he s t a r t s  talking about a 

possible parotid infection, parotid gland i n f e c t i o n  

on the 18th. 

Do you agree that the symptoms that he was seeing Gn 
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July 1 8 t h ' o E  '86, according to his notes hare, n o t  

assuming other facts, could have bean as  a result of 

B paratid gland infection? 

Not so that ha chonldm't be a b l e  to tell the 

difference, no. No, I think he should have been able 

to * 

Well, what wa8 inconni.stant then looking at his notes 

from the 18th and knowing what you know about  his 

notes from the 15th? What was inconsistent with a 

parotid gland infection? 

Well, several things. Number one, and I can't 

separate on the 15th, he aaid possible TMJ. 

Right a 

Then three days 1atQr he says possible parotic? gland 

because she's getting more swelling, but she has 

gat -- and does he mention trismus in there yet? I 

don't know i€ he ever mentions it. 

Let's assume he doesn't mention trismus. 

It's got to be in there. At this point in time he's 

run out of time to say possible t h i s ,  possible that. 

l ie's  gat to be doing everything he can to find out 

what it is now, and if he can't find out, to get 

somebody that can. 

Well, let me ask you this. Looking at his n o t e s  from 

the 15th and the 18th, what is inconsistent in those 
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notes with the possibility of a p a r o t i d  gland 

infection? 

Probably  the degree of trismus. Now, I'm s o r r y  -- 
The trismus is not in his notes. 

Y e s ,  well -- 
X understand t h a t  you believe t h e r e  was tr ismus a t  

chat time, but without ean indication of t r i s m u s ,  

assuming t h a t  from my question, what about the n o t e s  

of t h e  1 5 t h  o r  t h e  l $ t h  as  to her symptoms is 

inconsistent w i t h  a possible parotid gland infection? 

The possible source, the clinical evidence that you 

would get from milking t h e  gland i n s i d e  the mouth ,  

what I'm trying to say is t h a t  while he's writing 

t h i s  n o t e  a n  the 18th, ha's gat to be doing more than 

w r i t i n g  the n o t e .  

He's g o t  t o  be doing specific things t o  find 

o u t  l i k e  milking the g l a n d  to see if he's getting -- 
t h e  duct comes out hera. (Indicating) You can milk 

to see if you're getting s a l i v a  or a milky excretion. 

He's go t  to be finding specific answers at 

this time, not just putting her on Keflex at t h i s  

time. And he's gone from possible TMJ on the 1 5 t h  to 

possible parotid gland, but he's not talking about 

probable, What is i t  probably? And this i s  what 

scares me about the whole thing. 
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He's t o o  slow i n  finding out what is it most 

l i k e l y ,  and it's got to be somathing. This lady is 

getting more and more swelling. Shs's not getting 

any better, What is it most l i k e l y ,  and th i s  is 

r u n n i n g  a l o n g  time, and t h i s ,  is what scares  me about 

the whale thing. It's taking him too l o n g  to do 

anything mora3 than, you know, possibles, and that's 

not goad enough now. 

Let me a s k  you this. What was it that this lady 

eventually ended up with? 

Well, she ended up with over a month in the hospital. 

Pterygopalatine abscess? 

A b s c e s s ,  yeah 

Well, based upon the notes here that you have on 

J u l y  25th and July 18th, Dr. Chepla was considering 

the possibility of TkfJ pain and ha; a l s o  considered 

the possibility of e\ parotid gland infection. Do you 

think he should have been considering at that time 

the pterygopalatine abscess? 

I'm embarrassed if these? are the best t w o  things he 

could come up with. 

Do YOU think that the pterygopalatine abscess was 

more probable at that point than TMJ pain or a 

parotid gland infection? 

Yes. 
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Why3 

Because f r o m  what he had done on the; 8th and the 

condition of her mouth, a postopsrative infection 

steniming from removal of t@eth was something that was 

more probitble than a coincidental TMJ pain and 

swelling or a coincidental parotid gland infaction 

and -- wait a minute. 

And if you read these articles, you will see 

that when you g e t  this infection, these lead to death 

and/or extrema morbidity, l o s s  of sight, loss of 

sensation. Y o u ' r e  dealing w i t h  something -- this 
lady, there's no doubt in my mind, got very close to 

death's door, and nobody will ever know how close, 

but she got close to d y i n g ,  

These are life-threatening infsctione, and so 

he  doesn't have time here to be thinking on one day 

possible TMJ and three days l a t e r  possible p a r o t i d .  

He's got to be thinking am I dealing w i t h  the big bad 

one. 

You've done hundreds of multiple extractions, you 

said that. How many pterygopalatine abscesses have 

resul ted3 

God, less than IO, less than five, thank God. 

O u t  of how many you said hundreds, can you give m e  an 

idea of what the number would be? 
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Of what ? 

The 900, 800, 700 of these multiple extractions 

~ Q Q ' V B  done over t h e  years. 

I worked 22 years, and would I do five a month? 

L e t ' s  say 2,000, I don't know, 1,500, 2 , 0 0 0 .  

You've had five pterygopalatins abscesses? 

oh, less. L a s s  than five, T think, 1 don't know, 

but very few. 

And out of those 2,000 or so that you've h a d ,  how 

many have you had where they've had TMJ pain a week 

after your extractions? 

I don't r e c a l l  that any were?, that significant, t h a t  

TMJ p a i n  was a significant postoperative complaint 

from routine extractions. I dan't recall that p l a y e d  

a p a r t .  

When you say significant, what kind of number would 

you put on the word significant? 

The best way to answer it is that if I did multiple 

extractions on Someone who l a t e r  had T M J  p a i n ,  I 

can't r e c a l l  where I wouldn't havt; clinical signs; and 

symptoms where T could diagnose it as TMJ pain and 

what t h e  CISUSIS was,  where it stemmed from. 

It's impossible to have TMJ p a i n  multiple 

days a f t e r  -- in just routine multiple extractions 
and if it's tru3.y TMJ pain not be able to cipher back 
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and seep why. Oh, y e s ,  I know why you  have TMS p a i n .  

I t h i n k  I opened t h e  prop  too f a s t  or s o m e t h i n g .  

So it's n o t  someth ing  t h a t ' s  u s u a l l y  r e l a t e d  

to t h i s .  The TMS and t h e  p a r o t i d ,  t o  me: it loolsa 

like h e ' s  g r a s p i n g  a t  s t r a w s ,  I don't lcnaw where 

t h e s e  t h o u g h t s  coma. 

O u t  of the 2 , 0 0 0  m u l t i p l e  e x t r a c t i o n s  you've done o r  

80, how many times have  your p a t i e n t s  d e v e l o p e d  tl 

p a r o t i d  g l a n d  i n f e c t i o n ?  

None cr one .  You know, I c a n ' t  remember a n y .  Now, 

one o t h e r  t h i n g ,  Gene, a b o u t  going t h r a u g h  these 

a r t i c l e s  and one of t h e  t h i n g s ,  t h e y  t a l l  -- these 
a r t i c l e s ,  I s t a r t e d  i n  ' 7 0  and went up t h r o u g h  'E5. 

The t h i n g  y o u ' v e  go t  t o  a p p r e c i a t e  is before 

a n t i b i o t i c s ,  people got these and a31 of them d i e d ,  

as far as t h e y  can  t e l l ,  and i n  one or two of t h e s e  

a r t i c l e s  t h e y  t a l k e d  a b o u t  b e f o r e  a n t i b i o t i c s  they 

assumed a l l  people d i e d  when t h e y  had this i n f e c t i o n .  

S i n c e  a n t i b i o t i c s ,  t h e s e  a re  v e r y  i n f r e q u e n t ,  

v e r y  rare, and most oral surgeons w i l l  tell X've had 

one, I ' v e  had two, but i f  t h e y  happen ,  y o u ' r ~  d e a l i n g  

with p o s s i b l e  d e a t h ,  and i f  you l e t  i t  g e t  o u t  of 

hand, i t ' 6  just going downhill f a s t ,  and t h a t ' s  what 

t h e  problem is. 

f l R .  DeSANTIS: Let's go o f f  t h e  
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record for a minute. 

{Short recess is taken) 

Lkrctor, have  we discussed al l .  of your  opinions t h a t  

~ Q U  have regarding the treatment rendered in this 

case?  

My only opinion is that I feel that Dr. Cheplen in 

t h i a  c a s e  rendered s u b s t a n d a r d  G i S r e  to a groat 

degree ,  and I find his saries of actions to be in my 

mind indefensible and 1 would want to say to him 3 

have no malice to him. I hope he will read t h i s  and 

learn. 

I hope this will never happen to him o r  one 

of his patients again, but in this case 1 believe he 

did nothing right and everything wrong, I will send 

you copies of these -- leave me your c a r d ,  and I will 

send you copies of everything I've talked to you 

about. 

Have we discussed, though, all of the areas in which 

you are critical of Dr. Chepla? 

X believe from what I just said there, we have in 

that -- 
I understand you said he did everything wrong and -- 
It pains me -- 
-- I've t r i e d  to find o u t  from you what it is in 

particular that he h a s  done wrong. 
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Well, there’s one other thing that 1 haven‘t 

mentioned. He said in his depositian he did the 

right thing sending her to a neurologist. 

Yes.  

Two things 1 disagree with, Number o n e ,  I don‘t 

think he really made the referral. He told her ta 

call one, and number t w o ,  a neurologist was not a 

qualified referral. She needed threa things at that 

time. 

At what time? 

When she  finally got admitted to the hospital. Shs 

needed an adequate special type x-ray and CAT scan or 

MRII: was the best, and she got an M R I ,  

She needed an infectious disease person to 

tell him what is t h e  best bullet to grab, what 

antibiotic because they don’t have time for culture 

and sensitivity, and s h e  needed somebody who would 

get in there and try and stab and g e t  s ~ m e  drainage 

in that a r e a .  When you look at that picture I showed 

yout It shows what s h e  had to get. 

She did finally receive all those three things? 

Yes, but a neurologist can’t do any of those  t h i n g s ,  

and a neurologist could on ly  say she sure does have 

neurological signs and she’s l o s t  some sensation, but 

he doesn’t deal with infections and he doesn’t stab 
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and drain, and 80 he was not a qualified source for 

h e r .  

She needed the combination of a good x-ray, 

an infectious disease person to say what is the b e s t  

antfbiatics right now, we've  got to grab something 

quick and get in her vein and who can get back t h e r e  

and stab and drain, and Dr, Chepla says he does 

orthognathic s u r g e r y ,  which means he probably moves 

t h e  upper j a w .  

You can't move the u p p e r  jaw without n o t  

b a i n g  agreeable ta go back i n  that area and try 

drainage. He should have bean qualified to try that, 

and if he didn't want to, he had to get some people 

t~ da t h a t ,  but YOU had t o  do those three thingsl and 

n neurologist can't do those, 

You haven't prepared any  other reports b e s i d e s  the 

a n e  you looked at? 

No. I will send you copies. Leave me your card, and 

1'13 send you copies. I'll s e n d  you copies of how 

I ' v e  marked these. 

(2:37 p . m . 1  
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STATE OF WISCONSIN ) 

COUNTY OF DANE 1 
1 66. 

I, LISA A. CREERON, Notary  Public duly commiasioned 

and qualified in and f o r  the State of Wisconsin, do 

hereby certify that pursuant to stipulation, there came 

before me an the 7th day of November, 1988, at 6101 South 

Hiqblands Avenue, Madison, Wisconsin, the following named 

person, to wit: I R A  E. WILLIlif.fS, D.D.S. YATZ, who w a s  by 

me duly to testify to the truth and nothing but the truth 

touching and concerning the matters in controversy in this 

cause: that the witness was thereupon carefully examined 

upon oath and reduced to w r i t i n g  by me; that the 

deposition is a true and correct transcription of the 

testimony given by the witness; and that the witness read 

and signed the same; I certify that I am neither attorney 

or counsel for, nor  related to or employed by, any of the 

parties to the action in which this deposition is takenp 

and further, that I am not a relative or employee of any 

a t t o r n e y  81: counsel employed by the parties hereto or 

financially interested in the actian. In witness whereof 

I have hereunto s e t  my hand and affixed my notarial seal 

this 15th day of November, 1988. 
, ,I ... ... 

_L_c----I1__---- 
My commission expires: 

2- 28- 89 Nbtary Public, State of Wisconsin 

MAG N TJll R E P 0 R T I NG 
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Curriculum vitae: 

Graduated University of Tennessee Dental School 1961 

Dental Internship - VA H o s p i t a l  Memphis Tenn. 

Oral Surgery Residency - VA Hospital and Marquette University 

1362 

Milwaukee, Wis 1963-66 

Private Practice of Oral S u r g e r y ,  Madison, WI 1 9 6 6  - Present 
Membership in: 

Dane County Dental Society 

Wisconsin Dental Association 

American Dental Association 

Fellow American Dental Society of Anesthesiology 

Wisconsin Society of O r a l  and Maxillofacial Surgeons 
(President 1977- 79  1 

Fellow American Association of Oral and Maxillofacial 
Surgeons 

Diplomate American Board of O r a l  and Maxillofacial 
Surgeons 

Executive Committee and Board of Directors 
Member of Dane County Unit of American Cancer 

Board of Directors Wisconsin Division 

Wisconsin Council f o r  Cancer Control 1977- 79  

Chairman of Dental Department and Executive Committee 
Medical Staff Methodist Hospital 1974-76, 1980-82 

Clinical Instructor ENT/Plastic University of Wisconsin 

Society 1972- 78  

American Cancer Society 1978- 80  

Medical School & Hospital 1977- 82  
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DIP1 OMATE AMFRICAN W A R D  OF ORAL AND MAXILLOFACIAL SURGtRY Y' PRACTlCt L l M l l t D  TO ORAL AND MAXILLOFACIAL SURGERY 

May 12, 1988 

Mr. Richard C. Zeiger 
Kaufman & Cumberland 
Attorneys and Counselors at Law 
1401 East Ninth Street, Suite 300 
Cleveland, Ohio 44114-1779 

Re: Kathleen Nabozny 

Dear Mr. Zeiger, 

I have reviewed .in detail the documents and x-rays 
pertaining to Mrs. Nabozny's treatment by Dr, William E. 
Chepla in July, 1386. 

It is my opinion that Mrs. Nabozny received treatment 
which fell below a reasonable standard of oral and maxillo- 
facial care by Dr. Chepla during the period in question. 

Firs. Nabozny's treatment history and x-rays reveal a 
person who has been referred by Dr. Sangrick and is present- 
ing herself to Dr. Chepla with a desire and intent to rehab- 
ilitate her current oral condition and function. Her initial 
oral surgery treatment on July 8, 1986 by Dr. Chepla was an 
ordinary procedure in the average oral surgery practice. 

And while her oral health on that day did not demand the 
immediate use of antibiotics, that condition did indicate that 
an absolute need for antibiotics might present itself during 
the post-operative recovery period. Evidence supports the 
f a c t  that such an absolute need did arise, that Nrs. Nabozny 
contacted Dr. Chepla's office more than once with indications 
of less than uneventful progress, and that Dr. Chepla's re- 
sponses were far less than adequate. 

Dr. Chepla's records are extremely inadequate but still 

a - failure to see Nrs. Nabozny on either J u l y  10 
or llth, after her calls regarding pos t-  
operative problems, 

b - failure to start her on antibiotics on July 15th, 
the date of her "scheduled" post-operative visit, 

c - failure to act with regard for her extremely 

czpable of revealin9 a litany of post-operative care omissions, 
i.e. 

l)i iii.-s 
significant complaint of "trismus , ' I  which in ' L' 

I1 rl-. -, 
and of itself demanded antibiotic therapy, and i' + g g  


